
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, September 20, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
    a. 2022-052: A Resolution congratulating the Palmetto High School JROTC upon receiving the Air Force JROTC 

2021-2022 Distinguished Unit Award, the Air Force JROTC 2021-2022 "Silver Star" Community Service with 
Excellence Award, and the 2022 Southeast Region Cadet Leadership Course Unit of Excellence Award; and 
other matters related thereto. 

 
Hon. Cindy Wilson 

                                                
 
 
    b. 2022-054: A Resolution to recognize and honor the 2022 Dixie Ponytails World Series Champion "Starr-Iva 

All Stars" Girls Softball Team; and other matters related thereto. 
 

Hon. Ray Graham  
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. MEDIA AWARD PRESENTATION BY SC FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION 

                 Hon. Tommy Dunn    
 
  

 
 
 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, September 20, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, September 20, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                        Hon. Jimmy Davis 
 
 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                  September 6, 2022                                                                                   

 
 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
 
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING: 
    
    a. 2022-037: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and 

between Anderson County, South Carolina, and a company or companies known to the County at this time as 
Project Little Brother with respect to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such 
property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source 
credits; and other matters related thereto. [Project Little Brother] 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
    
     
 
6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
    a. 2022-036: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted 

July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .92 acres from C-1N 
(Neighborhood Commercial District) to C-2 (Highway Commercial District) on a parcel of land, identified as 
5930 Highway 187 in the Mount Tabor Precinct shown in Deed Book 13946 Page 196.  The parcel is further 
identified as TMS #43-00-12-011. (District 4) (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, September 20, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

 
    b. 2022-039: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park. [Project Care] 
 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

     
    c. 2022-040: An Ordinance to transfer certain parcels of real property to the Town of Pelzer; and other matters 

related thereto. 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
 

    d. 2022-041: An Ordinance to transfer a right-of-way interest in real property to Big Water Marina, LLC; and 
other matters related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

 
     
 
  e. 2022-042: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and   

between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company or companies known to the County at this time as 
Project Hurricane with respect to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such property 
will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source credits; and 
other matters related thereto. [Project Hurricane] 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 f. 2022-043: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Project Hurricane; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
  g. 2022-044: An Ordinance approving an amendment for the enlargement of the joint county industrial and 

business park by and between Anderson County, South Carolina and Greenville County, South Carolina; and 
other matters related thereto. [Project Lifeboat] 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
 
7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:  
 
    a. 2022-045: An Ordinance to approve a real estate lease with Clemson University for space in the Anderson 

County 1428 Pearman Dairy Road Facility; and other matters related thereto. TITLE ONLY 
 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

    



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, September 20, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

 b. 2022-046: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 
20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 97.48 acres from R-20 (Single 
Family Residential District) to 1-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as 3508 in the 
Centerville Station A Precinct shown in Deed Book 15537 page 311.  The parcel further identified as TMS# 95-
00-03-006. (District 5) 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
   c. 2022-047: An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted 

July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.3 acres from R-20 
(Single Family Residential District) to C-3 (Commercial District) on a parcel of land, identified as 54.22 acres 
on Beaverdam Road in Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book 11140 page 228.  The parcel is further 
identified as TMS# 220-00-08-007. (District 7) 

 
Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
 
 
8. RESOLUTIONS:  
 
    a. 2022-053: A Resolution expressing consent to the installation of Speed Humps on Clarendon Drive, (C-01-

0055); and other matters related thereto. 
Mr. Matt Hogan (allotted 5 minutes) 

   
 

    b. 2022-055: A Resolution approving the joinder of Century Hills, Inc. as a sponsor affiliate to the fee in lieu of 
tax and special source credit agreement between Bluebird Solar, LLC and Anderson County, South Carolina 
dated May 21, 2019; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
    a. Legal advice subject to the Attorney-Client privilege regarding Anderson County/Iva Memorandum of 

Understanding. 
    b. Council action following Executive Session 

 
 
10. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
       
      a. Architectural Design Services: New Anderson County Detention Center-RFQ #23-004         
 
 
11. APPOINTMENTS: 
 
      a. Anderson County Museum Advisory Board-John Rainey                          Mr. John Wright, Jr. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, September 20, 2022 
 
Page 5 

 

   
 

12. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL: 
 
      a. Foothills Community Health Care-All Districts 
      b. Homeland Park Community Watch-Districts #2, #5 
      c. JBECO-District #2 
      d. Celebrate Anderson-Districts #1, #4, #5  
      e. Angel's Elite Model Troupe-All Districts 
 
       
13. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:     
 
      a. Special Projects 
      b. Paving 
 
 
14. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
 
15. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



RESOLUTION R2022-052 
 

A RESOLUTION CONGRATULATING THE PALMETTO HIGH SCHOOL JROTC 
UPON RECEIVING THE AIR FORCE JROTC 2021-2022 DISTINGUISHED UNIT 
AWARD, THE AIR FORCE JROTC 2021-2022 “SILVER STAR” COMMUNITY 
SERVICE WITH EXCELLENCE AWARD, AND THE 2022 SOUTHEAST REGION 
CADET LEADERSHIP COURSE UNIT OF EXCELLENCE AWARD; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
Whereas the objectives of the Junior ROTC program—located in close to 870 high 
schools across the United States and abroad with an enrollment of more than 125,000 
who complete more than 1.6 million hours of community service each year—are to 
educate and train high school cadets in citizenship and life skills, promote community 
service, instill responsibility and self-discipline through character education, and to 
provide instruction in air and space fundamentals; and 
 
Whereas the Palmetto High School AFJROTC is open for enrollment to middle and high 
school students who are in the 8th to 12th grades; and 
 
Whereas, for the fifteenth year, the Palmetto High School AFJROTC has won the Air 
Force Junior ROTC Distinguished Unit Award, as well as the “Silver Star” Community 
Service with Excellence Award, the 2022 Southeast Region Cadet Leadership Course 
Unit of Excellence Award, and numerous other honors for individual cadets. 
 
Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Anderson County Council hereby congratulates 
the Palmetto High School AFJROTC, expresses the community’s pride in their 
accomplishments, and thanks them for representing Anderson County so well in service 
to their community and country. 
 
Resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 20th day of September 2022. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
M. Cindy Wilson    Rusty Burns 
County Council     County Administrator 
District Seven     
 
      ____________________ 
      Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



RESOLUTION 2022-054 

A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR THE 2022 DIXIE PONYTAILS WORLD SERIES 
CHAMPION “STARR-IVA ALL-STARS” GIRLS SOFTBALL TEAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO.  

WHEREAS, comprising twelve girls representing three different teams from the Starr and 
Iva recreational departments, the 2022 12-and-under Starr-Iva All-Stars team competed 
in the Girls Softball State Championship in July, facing team representing the Midland 
Valley and Bamberg communities; and, 

WHEREAS, the Starr-Iva All-Stars took the state title on the strength of strong 
performances in all aspects of the game, with the offense scoring a total of 36 runs off 
of 44 hits and 26 stolen bases, the defense turning in a perfect fielding percentage, and 
the pitching staff allowing no hits and only four walks with 29 strikeouts over the course 
of fourteen innings; and,  

WHEREAS, fresh off their dominating state championship performance, the team 
traveled more than 700 miles to Alexandria Louisiana to compete in the 2022 Dixie 
Ponytails World Series, where they would represent South Carolina against teams from 
all across the southeastern United States; and, 

WHEREAS, at the World Series the Starr-Iva team’s dominance was again on display for 
all to see as they outscored their opponents 63 to17 over the course of five games in 
five days; and,  

WHEREAS, the team’s offense was fueled by 70 hits with 27 stolen bases and only nine 
strikeouts; and, 

WHEREAS, in the field, the defense turned in an amazing performance, finishing with a 
.979 fielding percentage and only 2 errors. 

WHEREAS, the pitching staff continued to show its power, allowing only 30 hits with 38 
strikeouts over the course of 25 innings; and, 

WHEREAS, this Girls Softball World Series victory is the first for a team from our area in 
more than ten years, and only the second such victory over the last twenty years, and;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby 
congratulates the Starr-Iva All-Stars on their superlative performance on the field, and 
thanks you for being “All-Stars” off the field as well, representing us all with pride, 
determination and respect. 

RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 20th day of September, 2022. 

FOR ANDERSON COUNTY    ATTEST 
 
____________________    ____________________ 
Ray Graham      Rusty Burns 



County Council District Three   County Administrator 
 
       ____________________ 
       Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

SEPTEMBER 6, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 6, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the Anderson County Council meeting,
3 special presentation meeting to order for September the
4 6th.  I’d like to welcome each and every one of y’all
5 here.  And thank y’all for coming tonight.  
6 We’ll move forward right now to Resolution and
7 Proclamation, this will be 2022-048, Resolution to
8 recognize and honor the 2022 Class 3A Champions Wren
9 High School Boys track and field team and other matters
10 related thereto.
11 Be Councilman Honorable Jimmy Davis.  Mr. Davis.
12 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
13 Chair.  
14 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE AND HONOR THE
15 2022 CLASS 3A STATE CHAMPION WREN HIGH SCHOOL BOYS
16 TRACK AND FIELD TEAM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED
17 THERETO.
18 WHEREAS, Track and Field competition is an
19 interdisciplinary endeavor, with success being
20 dependent on high performance in both team and
21 individual settings; and,
22 WHEREAS, the 2022 Wren High School boys track and
23 field squad entered the season as the defending SCHSL
24 3A State Champions; and,
25 WHEREAS, following a successful 2022 regular
26 season, the Hurricanes advanced to the State 3A
27 Championship meet, held on May 21st at Lower Richland
28 High School in Columbia; and,
29 WHEREAS, thanks to strong showings across the many
30 track and field disciplines, the Hurricanes once again
31 brought honor, pride, and glory back home, edging out
32 local rival Seneca High to capture their second
33 consecutive state championship; and,
34 WHEREAS, the Hurricanes championship run was fueled
35 by the 4 x 800 relay team, which capped off a highly
36 successful season by winning the team state title; and,
37 WHEREAS, the team was well-represented during
38 individual events at the state championships, with
39 junior Travon West finishing first in the 110-meter
40 hurdles, senior William Wright placing second in the
41 1,600-meter event, and senior Dustin Scruggs taking
42 home third-place honors in the 800-meter; and,
43 WHEREAS, for his efforts and leadership, team Head
44 Coach Larry Clark was named the South Carolina
45 Track and Cross-Country Coaches Association Boys 3A
46 State Track and Field Coach of the Year;
47 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
48 County Council hereby congratulates the Wren High
49 School Boys’ Track & Field team and coaching staff on
50 another outstanding year.  We thank Coach Clark and his



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 6, 2022
3

1 staff for their efforts, and we wish all of you great
2 success in your future endeavors.  We, as a community,
3 take pride of your achievements.
4 RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 6th day
5 of September, 2022.  
6 Mr. Chair, I make that in the form of a motion.
7 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion
9 Councilman Jimmy Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Any
10 discussion?
11 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I may?
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr. Davis.
13 JIMMY DAVIS:  I just want to say
14 congratulations and let’s make this a habit.  Because
15 we were here last year.  And I’m excited.  I’ve got my
16 blue and gold on.  As a Wren graduate I’m super, super
17 proud of all of you and Coach Clark.  I see Mr. Larry
18 Clark, Sr. here.  And I am just unbelievably proud of
19 you.  You have done a great job of making Anderson
20 County proud and we wish you all the best.  You know,
21 I’m the one reading the resolution, but Councilman
22 Sanders and Councilwoman Cindy Wilson all have a little
23 piece of School District One and have people -- have
24 houses that people go to Wren and we’re all super
25 proud.  We thank you for being here.  And let’s do it
26 again next year.  
27 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
29 else?  I just want to echo Councilman Davis’s comments. 
30 We’re all very, very proud.  You represent Anderson
31 County as a whole very well and we appreciate what all
32 y’all have done.  Thank y’all very much.
33 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
34 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
35 unanimously. 
36 Mr. Davis.
37 JIMMY DAVIS:  If I could have the
38 Wren High Track Team, the coaches, the staff and anyone
39 else that wants to come forward, parents, we’d love to
40 have you come forward.
41 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
42 APPLAUSE
43 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to move
44 on now to item number 2(b), 2022-051, a resolution to
45 honor and recognize Dr. William Mack Burriss for his
46 lifetime of extraordinary service to Anderson County
47 and to his country upon the occasion of his 100th
48 birthday; and other matters related thereto.  
49 Councilman John Wright.
50 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 6, 2022
4

1 Chairman. 
2 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE DR.
3 WILLIAM “MACK” BURRISS FOR HIS LIFETIME OF
4 EXTRAORDINARY SERVICE TO ANDERSON COUNTY AND TO HIS
5 COUNTRY UPON THE OCCASION OF HIS HUNDREDTH BIRTHDAY;
6 AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.
7 Whereas Dr. William “Mack” Burriss, born in 1922,
8 is a sixth-generation Andersonian, his 4th great-
9 grandfather having moved from Virginia to Anderson
10 County in 1760, and Dr. Burriss recently celebrated his
11 100th birthday; and
12 Whereas Dr. Burriss graduated from Boys High
13 School, playing football for the Yellow Jackets;
14 attended the Citadel then obtained a Veterinary
15 Medicine degree from Auburn University in 1943;
16 served three years in the Army Veterinary Corps in
17 Italy during World War II; practiced veterinary
18 medicine in Anderson from 1946 to 1950; and served as
19 Commanding Officer of Chicago’s Veterinary Food
20 Inspection Detachment during the Korean War before
21 returning home to practice from 1953 to 1982; and
22 Whereas Dr. Burriss met Hellen Joyce Legendere on a
23 horse-riding blind date during his time at Auburn, and
24 on a 10-day leave from the Army, they married in 1944,
25 later adopting two children—Doug in 1958, who died in
26 1986, and Cindy in 1961—and were married for 69 years
27 until Hellen’s death in 2013; and
28 Whereas Dr. Burriss opened the Anderson Humane
29 Society and built the Animal Shelter on Highway 28
30 South, which was named for him in 1974, and served as
31 Veterinary Consult for Anderson County, operating the
32 spay/neuter clinic until 2009, performing more than
33 30,000 surgeries.  Dr. Burriss also served on the
34 Anderson School District Five Board of Trustees for
35 thirty-five years as a member and chairman.
36 Therefore, be it resolved that, in a meeting duly
37 assembled this 6th day of September 2022, the Anderson
38 County Council hereby wishes Dr. Burriss a happy 100th
39 birthday and offers, on behalf of the citizens and
40 animals of Anderson County, their sincere appreciation
41 for his lifetime of truly extraordinary service to the
42 Anderson community and beyond.
43 And Mr. Chairman, I’d like to put that in the form
44 of a motion.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
46 Wright; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Again, I’d
47 just like to echo Mr. Wright, Councilman Wright’s
48 comments, and appreciate what all you’ve done for
49 Anderson County.  Dr. Burriss has been an extraordinary
50 life and extraordinary career and hope you have many,



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 6, 2022
5

1 many more years.  But we really do appreciate what all
2 you’ve done for the county.  Very thankful for it.  And
3 we see things everyday of your legacy, what you’ve
4 accomplished for us.  And we appreciate it.
5 Mr. Wright, anything else?
6 JOHN WRIGHT:  No.  I was just
7 going to say I believe we’ve got Dr. Burriss and his
8 daughter Cindy and granddaughter -- is that right? --
9 here to celebrate tonight.  
10 TOMMY DUNN:   All in favor of the
11 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
12 the motion carries unanimously.  Mr. Wright.
13 JOHN WRIGHT:  If y’all want to
14 join us down here for some pictures.
15 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
16 APPLAUSE 
17 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to move
18 on now to item number 2(c), Proclamation.  A
19 Proclamation designating September 17th through the
20 23rd as Constitution Week in Anderson County.
21 WHEREAS, it is a privilege and duty of the American
22 people to commemorate the two hundred and thirty-fifth
23 anniversary of the drafting of the Constitution of the
24 United States of America with appropriate ceremonies
25 and activities; and
26 WHEREAS: It is fitting and proper to accord
27 official recognition to this magnificent document and
28 its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic
29 celebrations which will commemorate it; and
30 WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a
31 proclamation each year by the President of the United
32 States of America designating September 17 through 23
33 as Constitution Week:
34 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Anderson County
35 Council does hereby proclaim September 17 through 23,
36 2022 to be Constitution Week.
37 Proclaimed this day, the 6th day of September,
38 2022.  I put that in the form of a motion.
39 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
41 Davis, Councilman Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor
42 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
43 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
44 This part of our meeting will be over and we’ll
45 reconvene here at 6:30 to start our regular Council
46 meeting.  Thank y’all.
47
48 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:15 P.M.)



6

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

SEPTEMBER 6, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JANIE TURMON



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
7

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting of September the 6th to order.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of y’all here tonight. 
5 Thank y’all for coming out and participating in your
6 local government.
7 At this time I’d like to ask Honorable Brett
8 Sanders, Councilman Sanders, if he’ll lead us in the
9 invocation and pledge of allegiance.  If we’ll all
10 rise, please.
11 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY BRETT SANDERS
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on now to
13 item number 3, approval of minutes of July 19th, 2022. 
14 Are there any corrections to be made to those?  Do we
15 have a motion to move them forward?
16 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson makes a
18 motion to move them forward.  Have a second?
19 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
21 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
22 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
23 unanimously. 
24 Do we have any changes, corrections to the August
25 2nd, 2022 meeting?  Do we have a motion to move these
26 forward?
27 CINDY WILSON:   Excuse me, I did
28 have one.  I apologize.  On page 4 of the special
29 presentation, I said in error Pelzer when it was
30 supposed to be Williamston on line 21.  And I just
31 request that correction.  May I make a motion that we
32 accept the August 2nd minutes with that correction
33 noted?
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson makes a
35 motion to accept the August 2nd minutes with that
36 correction.  Do we have a second?
37 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
39 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
40 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
41 unanimously. 
42 Any corrections to be made to the August 16th, 2022
43 meeting minutes?
44 CINDY WILSON:   May we make a motion
45 to accept the minutes as presented?
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson makes a
47 motion to move them forward.  Do we have a second?
48 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
50 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
8

1 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
2 unanimously. 
3 Do we have any corrections to be made to the August
4 30th, 2022 meeting minutes?  Do we have a motion to
5 move these forward?
6 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
8 Do we have a second?
9 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
11 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
12 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously. 
14 Moving on to item number 4, insurance -- health
15 insurance update.  I asked staff to put this together. 
16 At this time I’ll ask Ms. Davis if she would come up,
17 her and her staff, to present this for us, a few words.
18 RITA DAVIS:   Thank you, Mr.
19 Chairman and members of County Council, for this
20 opportunity to discuss health insurance.  
21 Three of your seven council members (inaudible)
22 voted for becoming self-funded for health insurance. 
23 And so January 1, 2019 we did that.  That necessitated
24 a whole flurry of brand new contracts; contract with
25 AnMed and others, other providers in the area.  We had
26 our Direct Access contracts.  We had to get a stop loss
27 carrier.  We had to get a third-party administrator. 
28 There was a whole host of things that we did.  And to
29 say it was a massive undertaking is an understatement. 
30 But we truly could not have achieved that without the
31 guidance of (inaudible) and (inaudible), our H.R.
32 Manager.  Everyone worked tirelessly, as you can
33 imagine.  I’m surprised they (inaudible).  It has
34 really been frustrating, but I’m glad to stand here and
35 say after four years, I think we have finally moved
36 (audible).  The beauty of this is flexibility.  We’ve
37 been able to buy into the Cigna contract, that gap
38 insurance.  This upcoming year, 2023, we are going to
39 offer air ambulance insurance.  Mr. Burns is a big fan
40 of that. 
41 And also, I’d like to let you know, we have direct
42 access to our four (audible).  But there’s a new
43 gentleman in town who is opening a new practice and
44 Direct Access is coming right along beside him,
45 training him up in the way he should go.  And he’s
46 going to (inaudible).  So we’re excited about that. 
47 (Inaudible) informing the employees about that during
48 open enrollment in October.  
49 But one of the main things that I’m proud about,
50 you know, when we stepped away from (inaudible) and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
9

1 you’re going away, you had to be away for four years. 
2 We’ve done that.  But I am excited.  Stephen is going
3 to share in a minute his analysis if we were still with
4 (inaudible) versus going self-insured.  And I just want
5 to commend Council for their wisdom to step away and to
6 take the risk.  It was a huge undertaking.  But because
7 you did that, he’s fixing to share some numbers with
8 you.  But I truly believe Anderson County has better
9 healthcare at a lower price for our employees and the
10 County.  And Mr. Burns, (inaudible), this is what he’s
11 going to be discussing.  Thank you.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
13 Davis.
14 STEPHEN PARRISH:  County Council
15 members, thank you for taking a few minutes here.  My
16 name is Stephen Parrish.  I’m a Senior Benefit Advisor
17 at Southeast Insurance Group.  And I have been working
18 with Ms. Rita and County Council since we started this
19 four years ago.  Ms. Rita is correct, it has been an
20 undertaking.  But your efforts should be applauded.  
21 Healthcare costs have gone up, just like everything
22 else, as you can imagine.  It’s estimated that since
23 2019 hospital expenses have inflated over twenty
24 percent.  And that’s due to a lot of different things. 
25 Obviously the COVID pandemic in there, saddle backed
26 with a lot of other things that are going on with
27 inflation in our country.  And so as a result you see
28 healthcare costs going up all over the place.
29 My job was tasked to find a way to mitigate those
30 increases to the best of our ability.  And in addition
31 to that, I was given four tasks back in 2018, as it
32 was.  One of those was the financial task; how can we
33 lower the cost to Anderson County.  
34 Today you are saving 1.1 million dollars compared
35 to had you been with PEBA today.  So that’s a
36 tremendous savings.  We were also tasked with finding
37 lower costs for your employees’ primary care.  So when
38 they go for their primary doctor visits, their lab
39 works, their preventive care, how can we make that more
40 affordable?  We were able to successfully do that. 
41 Over seventy percent of your employees are paying
42 significantly less -- little to zero now for their
43 primary care benefits.  
44 We were also tasked with finding ways for your
45 employees to pay less for their prescriptions.  We have
46 over sixty percent of your employees now today who are
47 getting their medicines for free or less than ten
48 dollars.  
49 And then finally we were tasked with trying to find
50 some local support.  Previously when someone needed



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
10

1 help it was a 1-800 number.  We have somebody that
2 comes onsite every Tuesday to the County Courthouse to
3 assist your employees with their questions, their
4 claims, and that’s what we’re here for.  
5 And so we’re looking forward to continuing this. 
6 We’ll be monitoring it.  We’ll be continuing to tweak
7 it, as Ms. Rita said.  That’s what we do, we adjust as
8 we need.  
9 And we’re here for you and we’ll be here for you in
10 whatever you need; that’s what we’re here for.  But you
11 should be commended for great vision because today
12 you’ve accomplished all four of those goals.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate it.  Does
14 anybody have any questions or comments?  Ray?  Mr.
15 Graham, I’m sorry.
16 RAY GRAHAM:  Not really a
17 question.  More of a comment.  You know, as we look
18 back at where we were and where we are today, you know,
19 there are several benefits here.  There’s a benefit to
20 each and every one -- we’ve got a lot of county
21 employees in here tonight -- that has basically reaped
22 those benefits.  But what a lot of people don’t
23 realize, the citizens, they also reap the benefits,
24 because we’ve been able to maintain basically better
25 coverage at a lower price, which has basically
26 prevented us from having to go up on taxes.  So I mean
27 there’s been a huge, huge benefit with this.  Just like
28 we’re looking at some other opportunities tonight.  
29 I think every one of the Council members up here
30 realizes the importance of retaining our employees. 
31 That is the most valuable asset we have to offer here
32 in Anderson County.  And I mean, through that insurance
33 program that we’ve -- that you guys have created -- I
34 mean it’s great to hear about the pediatrician because
35 honestly the only complaint I’ve heard recently is
36 basically the pediatrician, which we know the loss that
37 we had there.  That was -- we can’t even put a price
38 tag on that.  And I know because my child went there. 
39 But I mean also the concern is with the medicine where
40 they don’t have the opportunity to cover the children’s
41 medicine through the doctor’s office and you basically
42 have to go to the pharmacy, which costs the county more
43 money, costs the employees more money. 
44 So I mean there’s great opportunities I’m sure you
45 guys are looking at.  Definitely y’all are to be
46 commended for where we’ve come from and where we are
47 today on this.  And you know, I can’t thank you enough
48 for where it is.  It truly affects each and every one
49 of our employees.  And again, it affects our citizens,
50 as well.  But retention is the key.  And I mean us



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
11

1 offering them that type of benefit is truly huge. 
2 Thank you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
4 else?
5 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
7 CINDY WILSON:   Just wanted to say
8 thank you.  The few snags we heard about were addressed
9 and resolved immediately.  And some of the younger
10 employees I hear from, it sounds like we have far
11 better health outcomes now than we did with the
12 previous insurance setup.  Because they’ve got their
13 doctors here and they can go when they need to go.  So
14 that’s been a big help, I think, too.  Thank you.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
16 Councilman Jimmy Davis.
17 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chair.  Just a few -- you know, just a few short years
19 ago Councilman Sanders and I were sitting out in the
20 congregation if you will listening to the start of this
21 process with Councilman Tom Allen, and I was excited to
22 hear it as a Councilperson elect.  And I can tell you
23 as the operator of a business, I know how important it
24 is to offer benefits and healthcare for employees.  I
25 mean our employees in Anderson County are our lifeline. 
26 They’re everything to us.  And I’m excited to see this
27 program grow and improve.  And it is nice to have
28 Natalie to go to when we need someone.  Our staff is
29 great, but she does a good job following up.  As some
30 of our employees live in the northern part of the
31 county, it’s kind of hard for them to come down here. 
32 The addition of Cigna coming onboard has been great to
33 help negotiate with Prisma and Bon Secours.  And I’m
34 excited for what the future -- you know, saving 1.1
35 million dollars is great.  But giving our employees the
36 best out there is the best.  And I appreciate all
37 y’all’s hard work.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
39 else?  I just want to say thank y’all.  Appreciate the
40 staff, Ms. Davis and your people, Mr. Singleton, all
41 what y’all have done.  Also, the administrator.  When a
42 group of councilmen got together several years ago, it
43 took a while to get this thing in the works, but it’s
44 well worth it.  I think we’ve got -- I know we do --
45 better insurance.  But the main thing is, too, better
46 care, healthcare, for our employees.  And the rising
47 cost of the state insurance that we went through every
48 year.  Couldn’t do a budget not what their number was
49 going to be.  It would be budget time coming up and
50 still haven’t had a number from them.  Every year just



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
12

1 keep escalating, escalating.  And so I appreciate all
2 the hard work.  I know it wasn’t -- hasn’t been perfect
3 but I keep telling them people all the time, they
4 forget the system we had wasn’t perfect neither.  By no
5 means.  Appreciate you and your team.  Thank y’all very
6 much.
7 STEPHEN PARRISH: Thank you.
8 TOMMY DUNN:  We’re going to move
9 on now to item number 5, citizens comments.  This is on
10 agenda items only.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name,
11 please step forward, state your name and district for
12 the record.  You have three minutes.  And address the
13 chair.  
14 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
15 is signed up to speak.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
17 Harmon.  
18 We’re going to move on now to ordinance third
19 reading, 6(a), this is an ordinance authorizing the
20 execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
21 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
22 Carolina, and Volvo Car USA LLC (D/B/A Volvo Car US
23 Operations), formerly known to the County as Project
24 Fiddler, with respect to certain economic development
25 property in the County, whereby such property will be
26 subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes; and other
27 matters related thereto.
28 This will be a public hearing.  But before we go
29 into the public hearing, I’ll ask Mr. Nelson if he
30 would say a few words, and that way if anybody wants to
31 say anything, they’ll know what they’re talking about.
32 Mr. Nelson.
33 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir.  Thank
34 you, Mr. Chairman, members of Council.  This is tools
35 that are very expensive tools that are placed with some
36 of our tier one auto suppliers.  They won the
37 contracts.  Two different companies.  One’s called
38 Proper Group.  They’re located up at the Clemson
39 Research Park.  And the other is Euwe Eugen, the Wexler
40 Company, that’s at exit 27.  And they will have those
41 tools, plastic ejection molding tools, and produce
42 products for Volvo and then they will ship those to the
43 Volvo plant down in Charleston.
44 Right now there’s no specific number of jobs being
45 created.  However, there are over two hundred jobs at
46 both -- combined at the two plants that are being
47 supported by this opportunity for manufacturing and
48 production.  So this is a capital investment of about
49 four million dollars.  
50 Year one property tax is approximately seventy-two



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
13

1 thousand dollars.  And over thirty years a total of
2 five hundred and six thousand.  
3 Thank you for your consideration.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
5 Nelson.
6 We’ll go into public hearing now.  Anyone wishing
7 to speak to this matter, please step forward, state
8 your name, district, address the chair.  And you’ve got
9 three minutes.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
10 none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
11 motion to move this forward?
12 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
14 Do we have a second?
15 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Ray
17 Graham.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
18 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
19 carries unanimously. 
20 Thank you, Mr. Nelson.
21 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on now to
23 item number 7(a), ordinance’s second reading.
24 7(a), 2022-037, an Ordinance authorizing the
25 execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
26 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
27 Carolina, and a company or companies known to the
28 County at this time as Project Little Brother with
29 respect to certain economic development property in the
30 County, whereby such property will be subject to
31 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
32 provision of certain special source credits; and other
33 matters related thereto.
34 Mr. Nelson.
35 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
36 Chairman, members of Council.  This is a speculative
37 warehouse distribution facility located at exit 32. 
38 Approximately thirty million dollars in capital
39 investment.  Since it’s a speculative warehouse, no
40 jobs yet associated with this project.  First year
41 property tax -- well, last year the property paid nine
42 hundred and thirty-two dollars in property tax.  When
43 the project comes online in 2024, the first year it
44 will pay eighty-nine thousand dollars in property tax. 
45 And over thirty years ten million dollars projected in
46 property tax.  Of course, the tax illustration should
47 be attached to your documents in the booklet.
48 And this comes to Council as a recommendation from
49 staff.  We appreciate your consideration.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
14

1 have a motion to move this forward?
2 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
3 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Brett
5 Sanders; and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Jimmy Davis,
8 Councilman Davis.
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  It’s not in my
10 district, but I probably live closest to it than anyone
11 up here.  But I’m glad to see that exit really take off
12 and boom like it should be.  We look forward to more
13 projects up there.  Thank you, Mr. Nelson.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
15 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  All in
17 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
18 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
19 Moving on to item number 7(b), second reading, 
20 2022-038, an Ordinance authorizing Anderson County,
21 South Carolina to enter into an installment purchase
22 transaction to provide for the construction,
23 reconstruction, acquisition, installation, renovation,
24 and equipping of a detention facility and related
25 improvements and infrastructure; authorizing the
26 execution and delivery of various documents relating to
27 such transaction, including the base lease agreement
28 and the installment purchase and use agreement;
29 approving the issuance of not exceeding $55,000,000
30 aggregate principal amount of bonds by the Anderson
31 County Detention Facilities Corporation; delegating
32 authority to the Chairman of County Council and County
33 Administrator to effect such transaction and determine
34 certain matters; and providing for other matters
35 relating thereto.  
36 This will be a public hearing.  Before we go into
37 public hearing, Ms. Davis, would you just step forward
38 and give us an observation on this, what this is
39 entailing for everybody for people out there that might
40 not know.  If you don’t mind.
41 RITA DAVIS:   Yes, sir.  I think
42 our bond attorney has provided some bullet points, if
43 you don’t mind, of what this transaction ---
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.
45 RITA DAVIS:     The ordinance
46 authorizing installment purchase transactions for the
47 development of a (inaudible).  It authorizes a lease
48 between the county and the Anderson County Detention
49 Facilities Corp.  Through an installment purchase
50 agreement the county will purchase (inaudible) over a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
15

1 twenty-year period.  The project will also involve a
2 trust agreement between the corporation and Regions
3 Bank to facilitate the transaction.  
4 Regions Bank was selected because they’re currently
5 the trustee on our Solid Waste revenue bond.  And they
6 and U.S. Bank are basically the two that are
7 (inaudible).
8 The overall project involves the issuance of bonds
9 by the corporation in an amount up to fifty-five
10 million.  The bulk of the issuance is non-taxable with
11 the taxable portion to satisfy the IRS regulations to
12 house federal prisoners.  And right now we have an RFP
13 out to the banks for private placement twenty years. 
14 Depending on the interest rate and what they come back,
15 we may have to switch -- and your documents allow us to
16 switch -- to a public offering for a twenty-five or
17 thirty-year period.  We can save ten million if we go 
18 -- by not having to go twenty-five years.  And we’ll
19 save twenty million if we don’t have to go thirty
20 years.  So that’s my goal.  So just pray we get a good
21 interest rate.  The bids are due back September 15th. 
22 And I think the Corp is going to meet on the 16th.  But
23 Council is meeting on the 14th for third reading.  
24 So Mr. Harmon and I can entertain any questions
25 that you ---
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Before we do, we’re
27 going to have a public hearing.  We’re going to go into
28 public hearing at this time.  Anyone wishing to speak
29 to this matter, please step forward and state your name
30 and district and address the chair.  And you’ve got
31 three minutes.  Anyone at all?  Seeing and hearing
32 none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
33 motion to put this on the floor?
34 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
35 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
36 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders
38 and second Mr. Graham.  Now open the floor up for
39 discussion?  
40 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
42 CINDY WILSON:   There is absolutely
43 no question of the need here.  And I think what
44 concerned folks was that things seemed quiet for so
45 long and then suddenly we’re having to rush to get this
46 through.  I haven’t heard the news today, but we’re
47 anticipating another interest rate increase.  It’s
48 already starting to kill our real estate work.  Isn’t
49 it, Mr. Wright?  And I do greatly appreciate Ms. Davis
50 and Mr. Harmon meeting with me this morning to answer a



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
16

1 lot of questions.  Because this was a very thick
2 document.  I’m still about fifty pages short of
3 reviewing the whole thing.  But the most salient
4 questions Ms. Rita answered.  And this is to cover
5 seven hundred and fifty beds.  We’ll have federal
6 prisoners, I guess, in one pod and juveniles in
7 another, and women and so forth.  
8 And I took the grand tour of the detention center,
9 I guess, about twelve years ago.  It was horrible.  I
10 just don’t know how our people can work there.  And it
11 would seem that anyone who got incarcerated would want
12 to go and sin no more and never come back.  But anyway,
13 I do want to lend my support to this, with the
14 installment payments over twenty years.  Each year our
15 county will receive an incremental transfer of the
16 title until we’re paid off.
17 I do hope we can go twenty years instead of the
18 twenty-five.  Because there’s some language that does
19 bother me on that.  But if we can’t redeem -- if we had
20 a windfall to pay off, we still could pay off, but we
21 would have to pay the cost of the interest through the
22 redemption deadline.  That was another thing.
23 But anyway, thank y’all.  And I appreciate working
24 with folks who really do take time to study these
25 issues and come up with the best resolutions we can
26 come up with.  Thank you.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Ms.
28 Wilson.  Anyone else?  Seeing none, all in favor of the
29 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
30 the motion carries unanimously. 
31 Moving on to item number 8(a), ordinance first
32 reading, 2022-036, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
33 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
34 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County
35 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .92 acres from C-1N
36 (Neighborhood Commercial District) to C-2 (Highway
37 Commercial District) on a parcel of land identified as
38 5930 Highway 187 in the Mount Tabor Precinct shown in
39 Deed Book 13946 Page 196.  The parcel is further
40 identified as TMS #43-00-12-011.  It’s in District 4,
41 Councilman Sanders’ district.  
42 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
43 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders.
45 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a second? 
47 You second Ms. Wilson?
48 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
50 Now open the floor up for discussion.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
17

1 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman?
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
3 BRETT SANDERS:   For those that are
4 not familiar with the exact property, it is the
5 Shortstop at 187 and Wild Hog Road.  And they have like
6 the facility beside it.  And this will allow them to
7 utilize that property in a better fashion.  I think Ms.
8 Hunter and I haven’t had any calls against it.  I don’t
9 think anyone even showed up at the Planning Commission
10 meeting about it.  But it will allow them to exercise
11 or utilize different opportunities.  And also with
12 plans of hiring -- how many?  Was it five employees --
13 five more employees?
14 ALICIA HUNTER:  Five.
15 BRETT SANDERS:   Five more employees.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
17 Sanders.  Appreciate it.  Anymore discussion?  All in
18 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
19 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
20 Moving on to item number 8(b), 2022-039, an
21 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
22 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park)
23 of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge
24 the park for Project Care.  Mr. Nelson.
25 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
26 Chairman and members of Council.  As we have done many
27 times before, this is an unannounced project in
28 Greenville County that’s seeking to be included in the
29 Anderson/Greenville Multi-County Park Agreement.  This
30 gives that company an opportunity to access state
31 benefits that are available through the multi-county
32 park agreements.  
33 We also have that same benefit for Anderson County
34 projects to be able to take advantage of those same
35 benefits.  And Greenville has been very cooperative in
36 allowing us to place those projects in the park, as
37 well.  
38 Greenville County sends its thanks for giving
39 consideration to this project.  They say they look
40 forward to working with us on our next project.
41 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
43 Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
44 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
45 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Ms.
47 Wilson; second by Councilman Graham.  Any discussion? 
48 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
49 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
50 Moving on to item number 8(c), 2022-040, an



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
18

1 Ordinance to transfer certain parcels of real property
2 to the Town of Pelzer; and other matters related
3 thereto.
4 Mr. Burns or Mr. Nelson.
5 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, we
6 have a request from the mayor of Pelzer, Mayor Ragland. 
7 These are bits and pieces of stray property really left
8 over from the days of the mill.  They just want to tidy
9 up some things over there.  And it will help us reduce
10 any liability we would have associated with those
11 properties.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
13 to move this forward?
14 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
15 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson;
17 second Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor
18 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
19 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
20 We’re going to move on to item number (d), 8(d),
21 2022-041, an Ordinance to transfer a right-of-way
22 interest in real property to Big Water Marina, LLC; and
23 other matters related thereto.  Mr. Burns.
24 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, when
25 the road was redone to Big Water Marina, they gave us a
26 right-of-way.  We did not need the right-of-way any
27 longer, so we want to deed it back to them and place
28 the liability back with them.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
30 have a motion to move this forward?
31 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
32 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Graham;
34 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
35 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
36 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
37 We’re going to move on to item number (e), 8(e),
38 2022-042, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
39 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
40 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
41 or companies known to the County at this time as
42 Project Hurricane with respect to certain economic
43 development property in the County, whereby such
44 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of
45 taxes, including the provision of certain special
46 source credits; and other matters related thereto.
47 Project Hurricane.  Mr. Nelson.
48 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
49 Chairman, members of Council.  Just as a side note,
50 Project Hurricane has nothing to do with any properties



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
19

1 at exit 19 or 21.  This is a project at exit 35.  It’s
2 manufacturing.  And it is an economic development
3 effort in manufacturing.  It’s an eighteen million
4 dollar capital investment creating thirty-seven jobs,
5 with an average pay of twenty-five dollars and fourteen
6 cents an hour.  A new annual payroll of 1.8 million
7 dollars.  This is a six percent fee agreement over
8 thirty years and has multiple components with
9 buildings, land and equipment.  And special source
10 revenue credit of eighty-five percent for years one
11 though five.  Thirty-five percent for years six through
12 thirty.  The property taxes paid on these properties
13 last year, seventeen thousand one hundred ten dollars. 
14 Projected taxes for 2024, approximately fifty-three
15 thousand.  And over thirty years 5.4 million.  
16 Project Hurricane is a veteran-owned business. 
17 It’s moving here from a -- outside of Anderson County. 
18 They provide market-ready solutions for the automotive
19 and textile industry.  They supply the automotive and
20 textile and packaging industries with high levels of
21 expertise in laminated projects, die cut, thermal
22 forming and laser cut and engraving.  
23 Community impact for the first year 2.2 million. 
24 And over thirty years, 80.6 million.  This comes to
25 Council as a recommendation from staff.  Thank you, Mr.
26 Chairman.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
28 Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
30 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
32 Davis and second Ms. Cindy Wilson.  Any discussion? 
33 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
34 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
35 Moving on to item number (f), 8(f), 2022-043, an
36 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
37 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park)
38 of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge
39 the park to include certain property of Project
40 Hurricane; and other matters related thereto.
41 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
42 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
44 Do we have a second?
45 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
47 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
48 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
49 carries unanimously. 
50 Moving on to item number 9(a), Resolutions, 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
20

1 2022-049, a Resolution to approve acceptance by
2 Anderson County, South Carolina, of a portion of Ryobi
3 Drive (S-4-166) from the South Carolina Department of
4 Transportation ("SCDOT") near the intersection of
5 Martin Road and Ryobi Drive and SC Highway 81 North;
6 and other matters related thereto. 
7 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, I
8 think you missed one.  
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Did I miss one?
10 LEON HARMON:  8(g).
11 TOMMY DUNN:   I ain’t got that on
12 my paper.
13 JIMMY DAVIS:  It’s not on mine
14 either.
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Not on mine either.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   For once I was
17 right.
18 BRETT SANDERS:   I got it.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Somebody give me
20 one.  You got it?  I ain’t the only one ain’t got it;
21 am I?  Wasn’t in my packet.  Okay.  Thank you.
22 BRETT SANDERS:   I update mine right
23 before I get here.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   I apologize.  We’re
25 going to move on to 8(g), an Ordinance approving an
26 amendment for the enlargement of the joint county
27 industrial and business park by and between Anderson
28 County, South Carolina and Greenville County, South
29 Carolina; and other matters related thereto.  This is
30 Project Lifeboat.  Do we have a motion to put this on
31 the floor?
32 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
33 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
35 Davis; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
36 discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
37 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
38 Chairman.  If I could just remind Council, we’ve
39 already had this on Council agenda and had first and
40 second reading.  But this is a capital investment of
41 approximately twenty million dollars, creating fifty
42 jobs with an average pay of forty-two dollars an hour. 
43 Just those fifty jobs alone creates a new payroll of
44 four million dollars.  This comes to Council as a
45 recommendation from staff.  Thank you, sir.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  I have a
47 motion.  Is there anymore discussion?  All in favor of
48 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
49 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
50 Now we’re going to move on to item number 9(a), 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
21

1 2022-049, a Resolution to approve acceptance by
2 Anderson County, South Carolina, of a portion of Ryobi
3 Drive (S-4-166) from the South Carolina Department of
4 Transportation ("SCDOT") near the intersection of
5 Martin Road and Ryobi Drive and SC Highway 81 North;
6 and other matters related thereto.
7 Mr. Burns or Mr. Harmon?
8 RUSTY BURNS:  They meet all
9 requirements, Mr. Chairman.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Do we have a
11 motion to put this forward?
12 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
13 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
15 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
16 CINDY WILSON:   One quick question.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am. 
18 CINDY WILSON:   It says the project
19 was funded by LPA, and I forgot ---
20 RUSTY BURNS:  LPA is a grant
21 program, Ms. Wilson.
22 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.  Thank you.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  All in
24 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
25 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.
26 Moving on to (b), 2022-050, a Resolution
27 authorizing the execution and delivery of an inducement
28 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
29 Carolina and Project Hurricane, whereby, under certain
30 conditions, Anderson County will execute a fee in lieu
31 of tax and special source credit agreement with respect
32 to a project in the county whereby the project would be
33 subject to payment of certain fees in lieu of taxes,
34 and whereby Project/Company will be provided certain
35 credits against fee payments in reimbursement of
36 investment in related qualified infrastructure; and
37 providing for related matters.
38 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
39 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
41 Do we have a second?
42 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Brett
44 Sanders.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Mr.
45 Nelson.
46 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
47 Chairman.  This is a resolution that summarizes the
48 agreement between the county and the company and the
49 incentive package that was receive for the jobs
50 creation.  And those are thirty-seven jobs at twenty-



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
22

1 four dollars an hour.  This comes to council as a
2 recommendation from staff.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
4 else?  Anymore discussion?  Or any discussion?  Hearing
5 and seeing none, all in favor of the motion, show of
6 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
7 unanimously. 
8 Moving on to item number 10 ---
9 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
11 Nelson.  Appreciate you and your team.
12 Moving on to item number 10, old Armory building to
13 the Department of Natural Resources for a training
14 facility.  Mr. Burns.
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, this
16 is in the pathway of the new jail.  It is a twenty-four
17 by thirty-two foot building.  Request from DNR to take
18 it so they can use it out on the lake as a meeting
19 room.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Everybody good with
21 that?  Mr. Burns?  Okay.  Do we have a motion to move
22 this forward?
23 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
24 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Graham;
26 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of
27 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
28 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
29 Moving on to item number 11, South Carolina
30 infrastructure improvement program grant requested by
31 Highway 88 Water Company.  Mr. Sanders.
32 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Mr.
33 Chairman.  This is from the Highway 88 Water Company. 
34 They had reached out to the county to assist them in a
35 grant.  I talked with Mr. Steve Newton and he says that
36 this will not have any impact on Anderson County and
37 will allow us to help them receive the grant to do
38 infrastructure improvements.
39 TOMMY DUNN:    Do we have a motion
40 from you?
41 BRETT SANDERS:   I put that in the
42 form of a motion, sir.
43 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
44 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
46 Davis.  Open the floor up for discussion.  This is
47 something we do generally -- we have done for other
48 water districts for a pass-through.  
49 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion, show of
50 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
23

1 unanimously. 
2 Moving on to item number 12, certification of the
3 Anderson County 2022 tax year levy.  Ms. Davis.  
4 RITA DAVIS:    Yes, sir.  As you
5 know this is a rollback year, so the citizens will be
6 glad to know that we will be rolling back, combined
7 county levy, 2.4 mils.  That’s exclusive of debt
8 service.  The auditor is responsible for that.  You
9 will also be happy to know that I conferred with the
10 new auditor and also the treasurer and assessor.  We
11 all came in a room and we came to an understanding and
12 agreement that we believe that this new levy will
13 generate the taxes to support our fiscal year ‘23
14 budget.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
16 to move this forward?
17 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
18 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
19 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
21 second Mr. Graham.  Any discussion?  I want to know and
22 I will -- want to appreciate Mr. Phillips, the
23 treasurer of Anderson County and the new auditor, for
24 all y’all working together, and what you do and our tax
25 assessor, Mr. McClain, for all what y’all do working
26 together and getting this accomplished as a team.  We
27 appreciate you for the citizens of Anderson County.  
28 RITA DAVIS:   I do want to bring
29 to your attention the fourth sheet in there is what Mr.
30 Harmon calls a (inaudible) sheet.  It’s a correction to
31 the maximum levy that we’re making that 84.5.  But of
32 course it’s only 81.5, but Mr. (inaudible) wanted us to
33 correct that.  That’s in your packet.  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, ma’am.  Thank
35 you.  
36 Moving on now to item number 13, discussion of --
37 we didn’t vote on it?  I’m sorry about that.  We got a
38 motion and a second.  Anymore discussion?  All in favor
39 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
40 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
41 Moving on now to item number 13, discussion of
42 class 1 officer salaries.  I’d like to start this off. 
43 What I’d like to propose tonight, currently the class 1
44 deputies in Anderson County start at forty-one thousand
45 one hundred dollars.  With overtime and holiday pay,
46 they earn around forty-six thousand six twenty-two. 
47 Greenville County, it was brought to my attention, just
48 raised their deputy starting pay to forty-nine thousand
49 dollars in July.  The state troopers -- the state
50 increased state troopers’ pay to fifty-one seven.  And



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
24

1 SLED increased their starting pay to fifty thousand. 
2 DNR, Department of Natural Resources is at forty-eight
3 thousand.  
4 In order to stay competitive and award our class 1
5 officers who put their life on the line for the
6 citizens of Anderson County every day and night, I’m
7 recommending that the Council increase the class 1
8 officers’ salary, including holiday and overtime pay,
9 to forty-eight thousand dollars.  The base salary will
10 be forty-two four without overtime and holiday pay.  In
11 order to present compression all class 1 salaries will
12 be increased percentage-wise in accordance with the
13 Sheriff’s pay plan that he’s enacted, him and his
14 command staff.  I’m asking that this increase be
15 effective 10/7/22 pay check.  This will provide for
16 retention of existing officers and competitive
17 recruitment opportunities within the neighboring
18 agencies to retain officers, to save the county money
19 by not having to train new officers, which is a six-
20 month process at the very minimum.
21 And at this time before I open the floor up for
22 discussion, I put that in the form of a motion.
23 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
24 BRETT SANDERS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Sanders. 
26 I would like to ask the sheriff to step forward and
27 speak to this matter.
28 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Good evening.  I
29 just want to say that I am extremely appreciative of my
30 County Council.  And we have -- I know we have worked
31 together very well for the last almost six years and
32 I’ve been with the Sheriff’s Office for almost twenty
33 years.  And I’ve never seen a Council work so well with
34 the Sheriff’s Office.  I’m extremely proud that this is
35 my Council.  And I’m proud to work with you.
36 As you know, law enforcement is becoming a very,
37 very competitive industry.  And we want to stay
38 competitive within our industry.  Over the last five
39 years, we have come along to be one of the best
40 agencies in South Carolina.  We have improved our
41 training facilities drastically.  We’ve been able to --
42 our pay has been good and it’s been competitive.  And
43 we’ve gotten to this point where all of a sudden -- and
44 of course the state and local agencies, including
45 Greenville County, they’re starting to pull away from
46 us.  Retention is very important to me.  I know
47 retention is very important to y’all.  I know we were
48 talking about including the insurance benefit a while
49 ago.  Retention is huge.  We have the best employees in
50 South Carolina.  I’ll go to bat for my deputies.  And



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
25

1 they’re not just my deputies.  They’re your deputies. 
2 They work for you.  And they serve -- they’re not just
3 law enforcement officers, they’re servants.  And you
4 can’t put a price on serving others.  You just can’t. 
5 And these folks bleed, they get hurt, they get spit on,
6 they get treated poorly.  And that’s just in the
7 courtroom.  I’m just kidding.  
8 You know, our judicial system is messed up.  And if
9 we’re not getting embattled by our judicial system, we
10 are with the media and parts of the public.  But
11 overwhelmingly, I know our public and I know our County
12 Council stands behind us.  And we appreciate you.  It’s
13 like being an island sometimes and having to fight
14 everybody off.  
15 But just for you guys, and ma’am, to be so
16 proactive on this issue and to recognize this issue and
17 bring it to my attention, too.  Because I know it’s
18 been on the news some and everything else.  I’m just so
19 appreciative of that.  That makes me know that you guys
20 are looking out for us.  Because we do, we want to
21 serve to the best of our ability.  But again, we have
22 to stay competitive.
23 Me and my wife were talking -- it was in the news. 
24 We had a third officer that had been I guess -- with
25 Fentanyl, she had receive -- I think it was contact
26 through her skin, but she was exposed to Fentanyl.  It
27 was the third officer we’ve had in less than a year
28 exposed to Fentanyl.  My wife said, this is the reason
29 like one hundred and twenty-seven not to be a police
30 officer these days.  And it’s true, it’s a tough, tough
31 world that we live in.  And I know Mr. Graham is former
32 law enforcement.  Also, he remembers -- times have
33 changed.  It’s harder now than it ever has been.  When
34 I was on patrol almost twenty years ago, you know, I’d
35 give anything for these folks that are on patrol today
36 to experience what we experienced twenty years ago. 
37 It’s nothing like it is now.  And so the danger that
38 lurks around every corner for them.  I know this is a
39 small token of gratitude, and I know there’s not
40 endless pots of money.  I realize that.  And I
41 appreciate your conservative stance on taxes because
42 I’m a taxpayer, too, and I really don’t want to pay
43 more taxes.  But I appreciate y’all being so proactive
44 and looking out for your deputies.
45 Is there any questions that you have for me?
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Any questions or
47 comments for the Sheriff?
48 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
50 CINDY WILSON:   First of all, thank



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
26

1 y’all.  We do have a wonderful Sheriff and Sheriff’s
2 Department.  Y’all are incredible.  And there are a lot
3 of factors engaged in this consideration.  One of them
4 being the inflationary pressure that our officers and
5 all of us are experiencing.  
6 So my question is, do we have it within our budget
7 to do this in October?  Do we need to do a supplemental
8 budget?
9 TOMMY DUNN:   No, ma’am.  It’s in
10 our budget.  We can do this.
11 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.  Thank you. 
12 And thank y’all.
13 CHAD MCBRIDE:   Yes, ma’am.  And I
14 would agree, inflation -- if inflation is up nine
15 percent, it does have an effect on these officers and
16 their families.  And most of these officers have
17 children, as well.  So if we can ease that burden just
18 a little bit for them that goes a long way.  And they
19 know that this county is taking care of them.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
21 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham. 
23 Councilman Graham.
24 RAY GRAHAM:  Sheriff, first and
25 foremost, you know, each and every one of you guys are
26 to be commended because on a daily basis y’all are
27 maintaining the budget that you have and being
28 conscious of the expense.  You look at everything.  The
29 cost of everything has went up.  Fuel in itself has
30 been a nightmare you guys on a budget system.
31 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Yes, sir. 
32 RAY GRAHAM:  So I mean there’s
33 multiple things that we fight against every single day. 
34 But one thing I’m proud to say, and I think all Council
35 members agrees with this, is, you know, again our most
36 valuable asset is our employees.  And for them to be
37 basically poached on and -- number one, they should
38 make you proud because Greenville and these other
39 counties are wanting these good officers.  But we’ve
40 got to maintain our staff.  We’ve got to maintain where
41 they can truly support their families.
42 We look back -- you know, some Council members,
43 when you come in office where we’re at on the salaries
44 and where we are today, and I mean this is still needed
45 to still maintain that efforts that you guys have put
46 so much effort in.  So definitely to be commended.  You
47 know, my only question was the deal was it going to go
48 across the board and make sure it stayed into the plan
49 that you guys have created.  
50 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Yes, sir. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
27

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Because that’s a
2 sustainable plan that we can ensure, you know, future
3 officers are still maintaining the salary that they
4 need to make.  We’re going to have to make adjustments
5 like this periodically.  It’s just like everything else
6 with society, I mean, with inflation and everything
7 else, I’m just thankful that our staff has been able to
8 locate this money and it’s definitely well deserved. 
9 Appreciate what you guys do, as well.
10 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Yes, sir.  Thank you
11 for that.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
13 else?  Mr. Sanders.  Go ahead, Brett, and we’ll get ---
14 BRETT SANDERS:   I’d just like to say
15 -- I know as the Sheriff said, he appreciates us having
16 his deputies’ backs or his officers, but I appreciate
17 each and every one of you in here.  I’m always here in
18 support of you guys.  And it’s not just that I have
19 your back.  By having your backs, you’re protecting our
20 citizens and you’re protecting the citizens in District
21 4.  And I see the presence out there.  I’ve seen the
22 increased presence since you’ve been on.  I just want
23 to thank you.  And I appreciate everything.  Thank you.
24 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Yes, sir.  Thank
25 you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Glenn Davis.
27 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
28 Chairman.  As a lifelong resident of Anderson County,
29 I’m just pleased with the way our Sheriff’s Department
30 is going under your leadership, Sheriff.  You’re doing
31 an excellent job.  I want to commend you and the
32 portion of your team that’s here tonight.  I truly
33 believe Anderson County is in good hands.  And I just
34 want to say thank you.
35 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Thank you.  That
36 means a lot.  We have a very good team and they work
37 very hard.  I appreciate you.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Go ahead, Mr. Wright
39 and we’ll get Mr. Jimmy Davis.
40 JOHN WRIGHT:  I was going to say,
41 Sheriff McBride, I’ve known you a long time.  I
42 appreciate your leadership in this county.  We’ve
43 talked a lot about economic development here this
44 evening in terms of recruiting jobs and providing good
45 jobs for the citizens of Anderson County.  But the
46 quickest way to run those folks off is by having a
47 place where they’re scared to come to.  And we don’t
48 have to worry about that because you and your team.  
49 I don’t want to sound like a broken record up here,
50 but really appreciate the work that y’all put in and



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
28

1 the effort you put in.  You know, there’s a saying, you
2 show me your checkbook, I’ll show you what you value. 
3 And there’s nothing we should value more in this
4 community than the safety of our citizens.  So really
5 appreciate you and your team and continued effort. 
6 Nobody more deserving.  So thank you.
7 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Thank you, sir.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman Jimmy
9 Davis.
10 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
11 Chair.  First of all, Sheriff McBride, I appreciate you
12 and your leadership.  I can’t even describe how good it
13 is to work with someone that’s so forward-thinking. 
14 And I know that’s not often recognized.  But Sheriff
15 McBride is always looking to the future and always --
16 we talk on a regular basis and talk about how we can
17 make things better for his officers.  
18 A good example of that, and I appreciate Council’s
19 support, is the satellite fueling station at Dolly
20 Cooper Park in the northern part of the county.  We
21 want to continue to find ways to make your job a little
22 bit easier because you’ve got a touch job out there.  I
23 appreciate every single one of you.  You are so
24 professional.  No slight to Sheriff Lewis or Sheriff
25 Crenshaw or Sheriff -- I mean, you guys are the best
26 and we appreciate each and every one of you.  You mean
27 a lot to us and we thank you.  Thank you.
28 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Thank you, sir.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  I just
30 want to close by saying, Sheriff, you do do a good job
31 and have done, but I think you would agree, you
32 couldn’t do what you’re doing if it wasn’t for the
33 people and folks behind you.
34 CHAD MCBRIDE:  A hundred percent. 
35 Yes, sir. 
36 TOMMY DUNN:   And this is what
37 this is about, to try to keep them.  Hope you can
38 retain them, keep your good people, because that’s what
39 it’s all about, good employees, good people to help you
40 do a good job and help our citizens, protect them and
41 everything.  Hear good comments all the time.  Wish it
42 could be more.  I want to thank our Finance Department
43 and this Council up here for having the wherewithal to
44 do everything conservative.  We’ve got a great Finance
45 Committee on Council and this is what they do.  At the
46 end of the year -- our books don’t close and start
47 coming in until about right now to actually get true
48 numbers what it’s going to project and see.  When this
49 come up and come to our attention, talked to Ms. Davis
50 and her department and they was able to find this money



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
29

1 to make this come through.  It’s not like it was hidden
2 or what you call it.  It’s being conservative.  And if
3 we’re going to spend it on something, we’ll go ahead
4 and do this where you can keep your team competitive
5 from what it is and hopefully these good folks will be
6 able to stay here in Anderson County.  Thank you,
7 Sheriff.
8 CHAD MCBRIDE:  Thank y’all.  Thank
9 you for being so proactive on this.  I appreciate you.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anymore
11 discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
12 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously. 
14 We’re going to take about a five minute break.
15 BREAK
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Call the meeting
17 back in order.  At this time we’re going to go to item
18 number 14, change orders and bid approval.  This is a
19 change order for the Green Lawn Space, bid number 22-
20 019.  And this is for the project behind us here.  We
21 tore down an old building and Building Code is change
22 orders.  Do we have a moton to put this on the floor?
23 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
24 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson;
26 second Mr. Davis.  For everybody that’s wondering what
27 this is about is if y’all pull into the parking lot
28 back there and you look over to your left, you see all
29 that red iron and steel, what you call it.  They didn’t
30 know that was holding that wall and everything up. 
31 That change order is to take that down and to fill it
32 in with dirt, what not.  That’s what that’ll be to fix
33 that.  It needs to be for safety, is the main thing.  
34 Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
35 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
36 carries unanimously. 
37 Moving on to item number 15, report from the
38 Planning and Public Works Committee, Chairman Wilson. 
39 Ms. Wilson.
40 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
41 Chairman.  We’ve got so much development coming to our
42 county and we have a lot of things that happen in
43 arrears like addressing some of these issues.  So our
44 meeting on the 30th was basically to get status reports
45 and updates and education.  The first item was the
46 status report on the updated County Comprehensive Map
47 and Plan.  Ms. Hunter advised that the County
48 Comprehensive Map and Plan, which is currently being
49 updated with census data and current infrastructure
50 information and other factors will soon be presented to



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
30

1 the Planning Commission and then to the Anderson County
2 Council.  The community-based meeting will begin in
3 2026. 
4 The next item was the presentation and discussion
5 of impact of short term rentals in zoned areas and
6 possible remedies.  A lot of counties are grappling
7 with this, and I don’t think many people realize that
8 Anderson County, South Carolina is now one of the top
9 twenty destinations for airbnb.  And so along with the
10 good news, there were some difficulties.  
11 So anyway, we were looking at how other counties
12 are grappling with the short term rentals versus long
13 term rental situations.  And the first concern is a
14 basic definition, is that short term rentals are less
15 than thirty days.  It was recently learned, of course,
16 that we’re one of the top twenty destinations, and I
17 think we have about three hundred and fifty short term
18 units that have been identified in this county.  
19 Our county has a longstanding accommodations tax on
20 hotels and motels.  The proprietors of the county
21 hotels and motels were concerned about their paying
22 their taxes, but airbnb and other short term rentals
23 were not paying the accommodations tax.  We should be
24 having a contract coming to us soon with a company
25 that’s been engaged to look at this situation.  It’s
26 called Granicus.  They are a data and analytics firm
27 and they’re to monitor short term rental listings
28 across multiple online platforms.  And we’ll soon have
29 this brought to our attention.  It is expected that
30 after we go through this process that the short termers
31 will pay accommodations taxes also.  
32 And homeowners’ associations in most of the
33 subdivisions can address the other issues, and we’ll
34 have some further guidance regarding short terms in
35 zoned areas soon.
36 The next item was refresher and setback
37 requirements in zoned and unzoned areas.  In 2020 the
38 county passed new setback requirements and also allowed
39 for new zoning classifications for landowners to choose
40 from dealing with residential agricultural land.  And
41 basically in residential agricultural one-acre there is
42 a fifty foot setback from the side and from the back
43 unless it’s abutting a street or a highway where it
44 should not be less than twenty feet in width. 
45 So we’ve got some new agricultural-type zoning
46 classifications for people to become familiar with. 
47 And we also have the advent of the conservation
48 development design guidance and protocols for people to
49 choose from, too.
50 So this was the gist of our conversation.  No



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
31

1 action was taken.  Do my fellow committee members want
2 to add to what we went over?
3 Thank you, and thank you to Ms. Hunter and everyone
4 else who worked hard to bring the information to our
5 attention.  Thank you.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
7 appointments.  Mr. Graham has got one, I believe.
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
9 Chairman.  Fellow members, this is an appointment for
10 our Board of Zoning Appeals for -- to replace the late
11 Mr. Allen Ashley.  This member is Russell Barton.  And
12 I did speak with Councilman-elect Greg Elgin as far as
13 on this appointment.  It was something we felt strongly
14 about that we needed to go ahead and fill, but
15 naturally with him coming on in January, having that
16 choice, I wanted to include him on this.  And it come
17 with his recommendation.  And I spoke to Mr. Barton,
18 and have known him for several years, as well.  So I
19 definitely think it’s a great fit.  This is to appoint
20 Russell Barton to the Zonning Board of Appeals for
21 District 3.  And I bring this in the form of a motion.
22 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
24 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
25 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
26 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
27 Anyone else have anything?
28 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, just
29 want to thank Mr. Barton for his willingness to serve
30 on this committee.  Definitely appreciate you stepping
31 up to that plate.  Thank you.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
33 Graham.  And thank Mr. Barton for his wanting to
34 participate in our local government.
35 We’ll move on now to item (b) -- I’m sorry, (a),
36 Human Relations Council.  I’d like to nominate for
37 District 5 to put on the Human Relations Council Mr.
38 Moss.  Put that in the form of a motion.
39 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Second John Wright. 
41 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
42 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
43 unanimously. 
44 Moving on, now request by council members.  Mr.
45 Jimmy Davis, Councilman Davis.
46 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
47 Chair.  I had one question on the Disabled American
48 Veterans.  Was that the total amount that they’re
49 requesting?
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Total.  They’re



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
32

1 wanting a refrigerator.  They’re needing a
2 refrigerator.
3 JIMMY DAVIS:  That’s the total
4 they need there?
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Ain’t that right? 
6 Yep.  Hold on a minute.
7 RAY GRAHAM:  Just a standard
8 refrigerator?
9 RUSTY BURNS:  Two.
10 RAY GRAHAM:  Okay.  We can
11 probably get them donated if we reach out.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We done reached out. 
13 It’s a little bit what you call it.
14 RUSTY BURNS:  It would be a long
15 drawn-out process.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   They’re needing this
17 pretty ASAP.
18 RAY GRAHAM:  I just had one -- I
19 got them to donate one not too long ago, but whatever.
20 RUSTY BURNS:  Then you’ve got the
21 power.  They’ve already got a deal with Home Depot.
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Okay.
23 RUSTY BURNS:  And this will fix
24 them up.
25 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I may,
26 I’ll make all four of these in the form of one motion.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
28 JIMMY DAVIS:  District 6 special
29 appropriations account, the LOT Project Oyster Roast
30 fundraiser, two hundred and fifty dollars; Anderson
31 County Museum Advisory Committee, two hundred and fifty
32 dollars; Disabled American Veterans, three hundred
33 dollars; and Jackie Seawell Junior Golf Championship,
34 three hundred dollars.  I make that in the form of a
35 motion.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Davis and
38 second by Ms. Wilson.  Any further discussion?  Hearing
39 none, all in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
40 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
41 unanimously.  Anything else, Mr. Davis?  You done?
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  Yes, sir, I’m done.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
44 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir, Mr.
45 Chairman, if I may put three in one motion.  Out of my
46 special rec account, I’d like to appropriate two
47 hundred and fifteen dollars to the Anderson County
48 Museum Advisory Committee; five hundred to the American
49 Disabled Veterans; and one thousand to the Jackie
50 Seawell Junior Golf Championship.  And as I said, I put



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
33

1 that in the form of a motion, sir.
2 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
3 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
5 Davis.  Any further discussion?  All in favor of the
6 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
7 the motion carries unanimously.  
8 Moving on, Mr. Glenn Davis.
9 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
10 Chairman.  I’d also like to put all of this into one
11 motion.  The LOT Project -- Cornhole Tournament, a
12 thousand dollars; the LOT Project Oyster Roast, five
13 hundred; the Anderson County Museum Advisory Committee,
14 two fifty; Disabled American Veterans, three hundred;
15 Jackie Seawell Junior Golf Championship, a thousand. 
16 Put that in the form of a motion, please.
17 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a second by Ms.
19 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
20 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
21 carries unanimously.  Mr. Graham.
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
23 Chairman.  I want to do all of these in the same order. 
24 I’m actually adding one that -- did you get that back
25 this evening?  Okay.  We should definitely have it now. 
26 If not, we’ll have it first thing in the morning.  I’m
27 going to go ahead and do that due to the time restraint
28 if that’s okay.  
29 On Belton Area Museum, a thousand dollars; Anderson
30 County Museum Advisory Committee, two hundred dollars;
31 Disabled American Veterans, three hundred dollars;
32 Jackie Seawell Junior Golf Championship, two fifty;
33 Crescent High School Anglers, twenty-five hundred
34 dollars; Starr Fall Festival, fifteen hundred dollars. 
35 I bring this in the form of a motion.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion -- second Ms.
38 Wilson.  Any further discussion?  Hearing none, all in
39 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
40 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Wright.
43 JOHN WRIGHT:  All right.  Thank
44 you, Mr. Chairman.  District 1 special appropriation
45 account, I’d like to appropriate five hundred dollars
46 to the Anderson County Museum Advisory Committee; five
47 hundred dollars to the Disabled American Veterans; and
48 a thousand dollars to the Jackie Seawell Junior Golf
49 Championship.  And I put that in the form of a motion.
50 CINDY WILSON:   Second.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
34

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Sanders. 
2 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
3 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
4 unanimously.  Ms. Wilson.
5 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
6 Chairman.  District 7 would like to appropriate two
7 hundred and fifty dollars to the LOT Project sponsor
8 for the oyster roast; and two hundred and fifteen
9 dollars to the Anderson -- make that two hundred and
10 fifty for the Anderson County Museum Advisory
11 Committee.  Put that in the form of a motion.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a second?
13 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. John
15 Wright.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
16 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
17 carries unanimously. 
18 Moving on, from District 5's special appropriation
19 account, I’d like to appropriate to the Museum for the
20 Hall of Fame, Museum Advisory Board, I’d like to do
21 three hundred dollars.  And I believe that’ll get them
22 to what they was asking for or maybe a little over.  Do
23 these all at one time.  I’ve got fourteen hundred
24 dollars on the Veterans.  Can y’all help me out on
25 that?  Ms. Watts, was that fourteen hundred dollars
26 what we’ve got on the Veterans?  Huh?  Yeah, the total. 
27 Fourteen hundred?  That’s what I thought.  They wanted
28 eighteen hundred, so four hundred dollars out of
29 District 5's special appropriations account.  And out
30 of the -- Jackie Seawell Junior Golf Championship,
31 fifteen hundred dollars.  Put that in the form of a
32 motion.
33 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
35 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
36 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
37 unanimously. 
38 Anyone have anything else?  And if something didn’t
39 hit those benchmarks, Ms. Watts, let Mr. Sanders know;
40 he’ll make it up one way or the other.
41 Moving on to administrator’s report.
42 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
43 time, Mr. Chairman.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
45 Burns.  Moving on to citizens comments.
46 LEON HARMON:  No one is signed up,
47 Mr. Chairman.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
49 Remarks from Council members.  Ms. Wilson.
50 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
35

1 Chairman.  I’ll be very brief, just to say thank you to
2 all the citizens and to our staff people and Council
3 members.  There’s been a lot of heavy lifting on a
4 number of fronts lately.  And the nice thing about
5 Anderson County is we all work hard together.  Thank
6 you.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
8 Mr. Wright.
9 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
10 Chairman.  Mr. Davis, you referred earlier to this is a
11 congregation.  Do we need to start calling Chairman
12 Dunn -- does that make him Reverend Dunn?  Is that -- I
13 just want to make sure we address him properly.  
14 Just echo Ms. Wilson’s comments here.  I was not
15 able to make it this weekend.  I was out of town for
16 the Celebrate Anderson.  But I heard a lot of wonderful
17 things and big turnouts.  So thanks to the staff for
18 time, energy and effort they spent pulling that off.  
19 Our Litter Ad Hoc Committee is going to pick back
20 up and try to meet next week.  We kind of had to put
21 that on the back burner while we got the budget
22 finalized.  So now that that done, we will be meeting,
23 hopefully, next week to put some action points in
24 place.  
25 And I just want to thank Ms. Wilson for her
26 Planning and Public Works Committee efforts on the
27 short term rental stuff.  I know that’s a hot topic
28 right now amongst some folks in my district.  I’m sure
29 we’ll get it to a point where it makes sense for
30 everybody on both sides it.  So thank you.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
32 Wright.  Mr. Graham.
33 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chairman.  Just, again, kind of thank all of our
35 employees for all the hard work behind the scenes and
36 you know, basically creating the county that we have
37 and that we’re able to serve in.  They definitely make
38 our jobs a lot easier.  
39 I know there’s a lot of things that took place
40 tonight, and each and every one of those was basically
41 from our employees being able to ensure that it was
42 something we could do as a county.  So just a lot of
43 work goes on behind the scenes to make Anderson County
44 what it is today.  So definitely thank to each and
45 every one of them.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
47 Graham.  Mr. Glenn Davis.
48 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
49 Chairman.  I’d just like to piggyback and congratulate
50 the staff on the Celebrate Anderson that we had this



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
36

1 past Sunday.  The rains came, but it was a good time
2 had by all.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
4 Davis.  Mr. Brett Sanders.
5 BRETT SANDERS:   I’m going to do the
6 same.  On Celebrate Anderson, I know there was a lot of
7 work that went into it.  I’d also just like to give a
8 shout out to Clarence.  I was out there Sunday morning
9 at eight o’clock in the morning checking on how the
10 stage was coming along.  He was on all fours digging
11 and running wires.  I mean, he was out there working.
12 I’d also ---
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Couldn’t do nothing
14 if it wasn’t for Buzz.  Don’t leave Buzz out.
15 BRETT SANDERS:   Well, I didn’t see
16 Buzz.  He might have been gone to get biscuits.  But
17 our staff and our Administrator and county for doing
18 that.  I think my wife was telling me that -- and Mr.
19 Burns probably know.  He can correct me if I’m wrong,
20 that right now we have the largest outdoor facility,
21 outdoor stage in South Carolina.  Is that correct?
22 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
23 BRETT SANDERS:   And I think by the
24 people that was out there and the economic impact that
25 a facility like that could have, I thank our
26 administrator for having the vision to see the need and
27 Council for doing that.  I would like to see us
28 continue to work toward letting everyone else in South
29 Carolina know we have the largest outdoor facility.  So
30 thank you very much.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
32 Sanders.  Mr. Jimmy Davis.
33 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chair.  I just want to say thank you to Mr. Burns and
35 his staff for what a wonderful day Sunday was.  I’m so
36 proud to be a resident of Anderson County.  And it was
37 just a great time, a fun time, and the future is really
38 looking good for that -- for our area out there and the
39 amphitheater.  And I look forward to what we have
40 coming down the road.  Thanks to all the staff for
41 working so hard for our health insurance and, you know,
42 just getting us in a much better place.  
43 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
45 Davis.  I want to echo and thank everybody for all the
46 hard work that went in to make Celebrate Anderson a
47 success.  I know we’ve been doing this, I think it’s
48 fourteen years -- we didn’t do it one year for COVID. 
49 This is the twenty-fourth year it’s been in effect and
50 this is the first time I remember since I’ve been



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
37

1 around that it rained.  But the rain did break and had
2 a good thing.  There was a lot of dedicated people out
3 there that really enjoyed it and went through.  We had
4 a good artist.  I think he put on a good show. 
5 Everybody that I talked to was real appreciative of the
6 new stage.  I think that stage is going to pay good
7 dividends for the county in the near future about
8 people wanting to come in and promote and do things. 
9 They also had a concert Thursday night before Labor Day
10 and it was a big success, too.  
11 We need to let everybody know there’s a concert
12 coming up in September that’s going to be on the inside
13 that’s a big thing.  We’ve got to keep having these
14 things and promoting them and giving people something
15 to do in Anderson County where people will come and
16 keep coming back.  The stage, though, is a big things. 
17 Want to give people a couple of reminders,
18 tomorrow, 10:00 and 2:00, we have Mr. Sanders’
19 Committee will be meeting.  All Council members are
20 invited.  There will be two architect firms, one at
21 10:00 and one at 2:00, a presentation about the new
22 jail.  The third architect firm that’ll be putting on a
23 thing will be on the 14th at 2:00.  
24 We will be having our next Council meeting on the
25 14th; that’s Wednesday at 6:00, to do this bond thing,
26 the third reading on the bond for the jail.  As we
27 said, we’ve got to get this where our time limit will
28 come in and hopefully get it before the interest rates
29 goes up, is what the acceptance about all this is
30 about.  Yes, ma’am.  In the conference room or in this
31 room here?  In Council chambers.  And everybody is
32 welcome.
33 I want to appreciate everybody’s work, appreciate
34 everybody about the Sheriff’s Department tonight. 
35 We’ve got a lot of good things.  I want to tell you,
36 folks, this thing with the insurance Ms. Davis put on
37 tonight is huge.  I just can’t tell you -- nothing else
38 about what we just kept going through year after year
39 trying to get a budget done and getting those numbers
40 back from the state; not being able to get them; not
41 giving them to us on time.  And we was trying to get a
42 budget passed.  And then when you do get them, every
43 year you could count on them going up five, six, eight
44 percent.  I think we’ve got a win-win situation. 
45 Appreciate the staff for what they done and the
46 Administrator’s foresight for getting that done.  I
47 can’t think of the fellow that really made this happen. 
48 He’s no longer with us.  From North Carolina.  Mr.
49 Burns loved him to death.  He done a great job.
50 But anyway, dismissed.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 6, 2022
38

1
2 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:50 P.M.)



48759124 v4 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-037 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC 
(FORMERLY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY AS “PROJECT LITTLE BROTHER”) 
WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN 
THE COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO 
CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF 
CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated as of August 16, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC, a Kentucky limited liability company authorized to 
transact business in the State (the “Company”) (which was known to the County at the time as “Project 
Little Brother”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation of land, buildings, 
improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property 
to constitute a new industrial (light manufacturing and/or distribution) facility in the County (collectively, 
the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $30,000,000 in the County within the Initial Investment Period (as such term is defined in the 
hereinafter defined Fee Agreement); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park (the “Multi-County 
Park”) such that the Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes 



2 
48759124 v4 

(“Negotiated FILOT Payments”) by the Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain 
special source credits to be claimed by the Company against its Negotiated FILOT Payments with respect to 
the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the County Administrator, upon 
advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and all 
changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. Revenues generated for the Multi-County Park from the Project through 
Negotiated FILOT Payments to be retained by the County under the agreement governing the Multi-County 
Park (“Net Park Fees”) shall be distributed within the County as follows: 

 (a) 15% of such Net Park Fees shall be deposited to the Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-042 
and used as required or permitted thereby;  



3 
48759124 v4 

 (b) 35% of such Net Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, shall be 
deposited to the Capital Renewal and Replacement Fund of the County; and 

 (c) remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the taxing entities in the County which 
levy an old ad valorem property tax in any areas comprising the County portion of the Multi-County Park in 
the same percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the millage rate (and proportion of 
operating and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for property tax purposes.  

Section 4. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 20th day of September, 2022.  
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Chairman of County Council 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
      
County Administrator 
 
 
      
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
First Reading: August 16, 2022  
Second Reading: September 6, 2022  
Public Hearing: September 20, 2022  
Third Reading: September 20, 2022  
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 



4 
48759124 v4 

      
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 



48759124 v4 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of August 16, 2022, September 9, 
2022, and September 20, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present 
and voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
 Clerk to County Council, 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: September ____, 2022 
 
 
 



 

48760041 v4 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC 
 
 
 

 
Dated as of September 20, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
48760041 v4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 7 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 10 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS ..................................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS............................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 14 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 18 



 

ii 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 19 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 20 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 



 

iii 
48760041 v4 

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC Project Name: Project Little Brother 
Projected Investment: $30,000,000 Projected Jobs: n/a 
Location (street): 1810 Easley Highway 

Piedmont, SC 29669 
Tax Map Nos.: Formerly 

193-00-15-005 
193-00-11-015 
193-00-11-009 
193-00-11-004 
 
Recombined (2022) 
193-00-11-015 

    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: $30,000,000   
 Investment Period: 5 years; possible 5 year extension* Ordinance No./Date: [TO COME] 
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years 
 Fixed Millage: 332.07 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

 
n/a 

 Clawback information: Full prospective and retroactive clawback of the FILOT benefit if Company and all 
sponsor affiliates fail to invest at least $30,000,000 in the Project during the initial five 
year investment period.  
 
 

2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Anderson/Greenville 2010 Park 
  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: 85% for the first five FILOT payments, and 35% for the next 25 FILOT payments. 
 No. of Years 30 years total 
    Yearly Increments: See above. 
 Clawback information: Full prospective and retroactive clawback of the SSRC benefit if Company and all 

sponsor affiliates fail to invest at least $30,000,000 in the Project during the initial five 
year investment period. 
 
 

4. Other information *If the Company and all sponsor affiliates invest at least $30,000,000 in the Project during 
the initial five year investment period, the investment period will automatically be 
extended for an additional five years.  
 
 

 
 



 

48760041 v4 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of September 20, 2022 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the “County 
Council”) as the governing body of the County, and GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC, a limited 
liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Kentucky and authorized to transact 
business in the State (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a new industrial (light 
manufacturing and/or distribution) facility in the County. 

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on September 20, 2022, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 



 

2 
48760041 v4 

provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

3 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC, a Kentucky limited liability company 
authorized to transact business in the State, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any 
merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights 
and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $30,000,000 in Economic 
Development Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee 
Agreement). 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 



 

4 
48760041 v4 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
Payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

“Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Extended Investment Period” shall mean, if the Company and all Sponsor Affiliates satisfy the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement during the Initial Investment Period, the period beginning 
with the first following the expiration of the Initial Investment Period and ending five (5) years thereafter.   

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 



 

5 
48760041 v4 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Initial Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase or 
acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement Date. 

“Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Initial Investment Period and, if 
applicable, the Extended Investment Period, collectively. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the multi-county park agreement dated as of December 1, 2010, 
as amended, between the County and Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further 
amended or supplemented from time to time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with 
respect to the Project to offer the benefits of the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company 
hereunder. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 



 

6 
48760041 v4 

property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT Payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
Payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



 

7 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is 332.07 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2022, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of [TO 
COME], is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to lease the Project to an operating 
tenant for light manufacturing and/or distribution use, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act 
permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 

[End of Article II] 



 

8 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project and meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Initial 
Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 2023. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT Payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300S 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Initial 
Investment Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 



 

9 
48760041 v4 

by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



 

10 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT Payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of 332.07 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

11 
48760041 v4 

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to receive, and the 
County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s first five (5) consecutive 
FILOT Payments in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%), and the Company’s next twenty-five (25) 
consecutive FILOT Payments thereafter in an amount equal to thirty-five percent (35%), of that portion of 
FILOT Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment 
made by the Company in the Project during the Investment Period), calculated and applied after payment of 
the amount due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  

(d) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Initial Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Fee Agreement shall 
no longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for the 
amount of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing 
sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (120th) day following the 
last day of the Initial Investment Period. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 



 

12 
48760041 v4 

the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Initial Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to 
the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the 
Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Initial Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT Payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such excess, a “Deficiency Amount”) for 
the period through and including the end of the Initial Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be 
owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred 
twentieth (120th) day following the last day of the Initial Investment Period.   

 (b)  As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 



 

13 
48760041 v4 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the FILOT, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the FILOT 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the 
same proportion as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the 
Economic Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, 
however, that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project 
remaining in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to 
depreciation), is less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the 
first payment thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no 
longer be entitled to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate 
shall therefore commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 
4.01(b) hereof.   

[End of Article IV] 



 

14 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE V 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means, following the initial 
occupancy and commencement of use of the facility by an end user or tenant in the operation of its 
business, the closure of the facility or the cessation of production and shipment of products to customers 
for a continuous period of twenty-four (24) months.  The County acknowledges that it is the Company’s 
intent to lease the facility to be constructed in connection with the Project to a tenant that has not been 
identified as of the date of this Fee Agreement, and agrees that the lack of operations at the facility while 
it is initially being marketed for lease, even if such initial marketing period shall exceed twenty-four (24) 
months, shall not be deemed a “cessation of operations” hereunder. The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof 
relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, if this Fee Agreement is terminated in 
accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Initial Investment Period.  Each of the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated pursuant to this subsection, that 
under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any monies to the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 



 

15 
48760041 v4 

any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 
a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT Payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the term of this Fee Agreement, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, 
defend and save the Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the term of 
this Fee Agreement from (i) entering into and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) 
any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate in the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence 
of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) 
any act of negligence of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, 
contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project.  The 
Company shall indemnify, defend and save the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses 
incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or 
proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such 
action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 



 

16 
48760041 v4 

this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 
any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 
Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 



 

17 
48760041 v4 

transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be required to pay 
Administration Expenses (including attorneys’ fees of the County) in excess of $5,000 for the initial 
negotiation, review and approval of this Fee Agreement and related documents.   

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT Payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 



 

18 
48760041 v4 

same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
Payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT Payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 
investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



 

19 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT Payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

20 
48760041 v4 

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT Payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



 

21 
48760041 v4 

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC 
c/o Gray Industrial Realty, LLC 
Attn:  Curt Hargrove, President 
9200 Shelbyville Road, Suite 606 
Louisville, KY 40222 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Burr & Forman LLP 
Attn: Brandon T. Norris, Esq. 
104 South Main Street, Suite 700 
Greenville, SC 29601 
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29622 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 

 Mr. Leon Harmon, Esq. 
101 South Main Street 
Anderson, SC 29622 

 
 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 



 

22 
48760041 v4 

entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and 
such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, 
valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the 
maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the FILOT Act, to 
locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or 
reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates and 
the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to 
reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company and 
any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 



 

23 
48760041 v4 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 
 



 

24 
48760041 v4 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 

this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the Chairman of County Council and the 
County Administrator and to be attested by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above 
written. 
 
 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
(SEAL) By:_______________________________________ 
  Chairman of County Council 
 
 
  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
County Administrator 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Clerk to County Council of  
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 



 

25 
48760041 v4 

 
 GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC 
 
  
 By:         
   Its:         

 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 

 



 

A-1 
48760041 v4 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land lying and being in the State of South Carolina, County of Anderson, 
containing a total combined area of 38.40 acres of land, more or less, and shown and designated on a recombination 
plat prepared by Jay C. Hipp, PLS #29115 of H & M Surveying, LLC for Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC, dated 
August 19, 2022 and recorded August 23, 2022 in Plat Book S2954, at Page 5, in the Office of the Register of Deeds 
for Anderson County, South Carolina, to which plat reference is made for a more complete and perfect description. 

Derivation: This being the same property conveyed to Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC from Gray Industrial Realty V, 
LLC by deed dated August 18, 2022 and recorded August 22, 2022 in Book 16325, at Page 101, in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Anderson County, South Carolina. 

Recombined Tax Map No. 1930011015* 

 

_____________________ 
*Formerly Tax Map Nos. 193-00-15-005, 193-00-11-015, 193-00-11-009 and 193-00-11-004. 
 
 
 

 



 

B-1 
48760041 v4 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC (the “Company”), do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement 
dated as of September 20, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the 
“Agreement”), as follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
      GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC  
   
   
             
      Name:       
      Its:       

 
 



 

C-1 
48760041 v4 

[EXHIBIT C] 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC (the “Company”), do hereby 
certify in connection with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement 
dated as of September 20, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the 
“Agreement”), as follows: 
 
 (1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 
 
 (2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 

 
 (3) [Use only if expenditures for personal property will be used to account for Special 
Source Revenue Credits.]  Of the total amount set forth in (2) above, $________ pertains to the 
investment in personal property, including machinery and equipment, at the Project.  The applicable 
personal property, and associated expenditures, are listed below: 
 

Personal Property Description  Investment Amount 
   
   
   
   

 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
      GRAY INDUSTRIAL REALTY 7, LLC 
       
             
      Name:       
      Its:       
 
 
 
 































PPAB 6356633v1

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-039 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND 
BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF ANDERSON AND 
GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010, by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (“Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created as a result of 
the Agreement (“Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County 
and Greenville County; 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to an entity 
identified by Greenville County as Project Care, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged 
to include parcels in Greenville County;  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the Agreement is 
and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County described in the schedule 
attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, at and after adoption by Greenville 
County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include the property and 
Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ________, 2022. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ ________________________________________ 
Rusty Burns       Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator  Anderson County Council 

_______________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Anderson County Council 



PPAB 6356633v1

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

First Reading:  September 6, 2022  
Second Reading: September 20, 2022 
Third Reading:  _______________ 
Public Hearing:  _______________



PPAB 6356633v1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

All that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, with all improvements located thereon, lying and being in the 
State of South Carolina, County of Greenville, being shown and designated as 4.89 acres on plat entitled 
"Survey for U.S. Tool Inc." dated August 2, 1999, prepared by Chapman Surveying Co. Inc., recorded in 
the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County in Plat Book 40-V at Page 68, reference being 
made to said plat for a more complete metes and bounds description hereof. 

LESS AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, that portion of the property containing 624 square feet, more or less, 
conveyed to the County of Greenville for Chick Springs Road Improvement Project by deed dated June 25, 
2002, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County on January 10, 2003 in Deed 
Book 2022 at Page 1975. 

This being the same property as conveyed to Robin Jean Sarles, Trustee of the Robin Jean Sarles Revocable 
Trust, U/D/T dated May 4, 2020, And As May Be Amended from Teamack, LLC by deed executed May 
4, 2020 and recorded May 8, 2020 in Deed Book 2593 at Page 2765 in the Office of Register of Deeds for 
Greenville County, South Carolina. 

TMS # T011000201900 



PPAB 6356633v1 4 

SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON ) 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and received 
majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of _________, 2022, _______, 2022, and _______, 
2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of 
which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

Clerk, Anderson County Council 
Dated: , 2022 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-040 

AN ORDINANCE TO TRANSFER CERTAIN PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY TO 
THE TOWN OF PELZER; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Anderson County code requires a public hearing prior to the sale of real 
property; and 

WHEREAS, the town of Pelzer has requested transfer of ownership over the below 
referenced real properties; and 

WHEREAS, Anderson County has never utilized these properties and has no current plan 
to utilize them; and  

WHEREAS, the requested parcels of real property consist of thin strips of concrete paths, 
previously used as walkways, that are situated between privately owned property.   

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Anderson County desires to transfer the following parcels of real property to the town
of Pelzer:

a. Parcel at 156 Paul Street bearing TMS 243-02-09-002.
b. Parcel at 162 Fuller Street bearing TMS 243-02-09-008.
c. Parcel at 378A Front Street bearing TMS 243-03-09-003.
d. Parcel at 388A Goodrich Street bearing TMS 243-03-10-007.

2. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson
County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect.

3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not
affect the remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable.

4. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading
in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina.

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
 
First Reading:      September 6, 2022 
Second Reading:  September 20, 2022 
Third Reading:________________ 
Public Hearing: ________________ 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-041 

AN ORDINANCE TO TRANSFER A RIGHT-OF-WAY INTEREST IN REAL 
PROPERTY TO BIG WATER MARINA, LLC; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO.  

WHEREAS, the Anderson County code requires a public hearing prior to the sale of real 
property; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County previously accepted a portion of Big Water Road from the 
South Carolina Department of Transportation in Resolution No. R2020-016; and 

 WHEREAS, Anderson County has never utilized this property and has no current plan to 
utilize it; and  

 WHEREAS, the referenced right-of-way consists of a triangle shaped parcel that is 
approximately 0.06 acres in size.   

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 

1. Anderson County desires to transfer the following real property to Big Water Marina, 
LLC for a nominal fee: 

a. A triangular shaped parcel of right-of-way to be recombined with TMS 35-00-
02-015, as represented in Plat Slide 2910 at Page 9 recorded in the Office of the 
Anderson County Register of Deeds.  
 

2. All other terms, provisions, sections, and contents of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson 
County, South Carolina not specifically affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 

 
3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not 
affect the remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the public hearing and the third reading 

in accordance with the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina. 
 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 
 
 
 
 



ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
                                                                           
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 
 
First Reading:         September 6, 2022 
Second Reading:     September 20, 2022 
Third Reading:     ________________ 
Public Hearing:    ________________ 
 



HSB 7355874 v.3  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-042 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY OR COMPANIES KNOWN 
TO THE COUNTY AT THIS TIME AS PROJECT HURRICANE WITH RESPECT 
TO CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, 
WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS 
IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL 
SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated _______, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with Project Hurricane, a __________ __________ (the “Company”) (which was known to 
the County at the time as “Project Hurricane”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and 
installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real 
and/or tangible personal property to constitute a new facility in the County for the purpose of an industrial 
warehouse and distribution building (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $16,000,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the 
hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by 
the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-
1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  



2 
HSB 7355874 v.3  

 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company was also assigned that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement dated as of 
March 1, 2018, (the “2018 Fee Agreement”) entered into by the County and Wilson, Inc. of Piedmont, a/k/a 
Wilson Inc. of Piedmont SC, a/k/a Wilson, Inc. (collectively, “Assignor”) (the transaction being the 
“Assignment”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended, and the County now wishes to ratify the Assignment. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and 
all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The County, pursuant to Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, hereby expressly 
ratifies, consents and agrees to the transfer and assignment to, and assumption by the Company of, 
Assignor’s rights, obligations, title, and interest in, to and under the 2018 Fee Agreement as provided in that 
certain Assignment and Assumption Agreement by and between the Company and Assignor and further 
ratifies and consents to the terms of the Assignment.   



3 
HSB 7355874 v.3

Section 4. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______, 2022. 

 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

By:____________________________________ 
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

Approved as to form: 

By: 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 



4 
HSB 7355874 v.3  

 
 
First Reading: September 6, 2022  
Second Reading: September 20, 2022  
Third Reading: ___________, 2022  
Public Hearing: ___________, 2022  
 
 
 



HSB 7355874 v.3  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of _________, 2022, _________, 
2022, and _________, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
      Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
   Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2022 
 
 



 

HSB 7355381 v.5  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

PROJECT HURRICANE 
 
 
 

 
Dated as of __________, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 7 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 8 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 8 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 10 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS ..................................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS............................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 14 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 15 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 17 



 

ii 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 19 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 20 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 22 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 23 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 



 

iii 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: [To come.] Project Name: Project Hurricane 
Projected Investment: $18,053,000.00 Projected Jobs: N/A 
Location (street): [To come.] Tax Map No.: [To come.] 
    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: FILOT Act Minimum Investment 

Requirement 
  

 Investment Period: 5 years Ordinance No./Date:  
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years  
 Fixed Millage: .33207 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

N/A 
 

 Clawback information: See Section 4.03 
2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 

Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 by and between Anderson County and Greenville 
County 1 

  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: See Section 4.02 
 No. of Years 30 years 
    Yearly Increments: 85% for years 1-5; 

35% for years 6-30 
 Clawback information: See Section 4.02 
4. Other information  

 
 

 
 

 
1 County to confirm. 



 

 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of ______________, 2022 by and between ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the 
“County Council”) as the governing body of the County, and PROJECT HURRICANE, a __________ 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of ________ (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a collection of buildings in 
the County for industrial, manufacturing, distribution, or warehouse space.  

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on __________, 2022, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 



 

2 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

3 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Project Hurricane, a __________ ____________, and any surviving, 
resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or 
entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least the FILOT Act Minimum Investment 
Requirement in Economic Development Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the 
absence of this Fee Agreement). 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 



 

4 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300T or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

 “Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Extended Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning January 1 of the sixth (6th) year  
after the first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service, and ending on December 
31 of the tenth (10th) year after such first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 



 

5 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Initial Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Investment Period” shall mean the Initial Investment Period plus, if applicable pursuant to 
Section 3.01(a) hereof, the Extended Investment Period. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010,2 as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of 
the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company hereunder. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 
property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

 
2 County to confirm. 



 

6 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



 

7 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is .33207 mills which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of 
_________, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee 
Agreement, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
industrial, manufacturing, distribution, or warehouse space, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act 
permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 

[End of Article II] 



 

8 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project, (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Initial 
Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 2022. The County agrees that if the Company meets the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement during the Initial Investment Period, the Company shall be 
entitled hereunder to the Extended Investment Period with respect to the Project. Failure by the Company 
to achieve the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement shall not result in an Event of Default under 
this Agreement. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300T 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 



 

9 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 
by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



 

10 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of .33207 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

11 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to 
receive, and the County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s FILOT 
Payments for a period of thirty (30) consecutive years in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) for 
years one through five (1-5) and thirty-five percent (35%) for years six through thirty (6-30) of that 
portion of FILOT Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to 
investment made by the Company in the Project during the Standard Investment Period), calculated and 
applied after payment of the amount due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  

(d) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Standard Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Fee Agreement 
shall no longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for 
the amount of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing 
sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (120th) day following the 
last day of the Investment Period. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 



 

12 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, the County may terminate this 
Fee Agreement and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is 
equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on 
the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such excess, a “Deficiency Amount”) for 
the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be owing 
pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth 
(120th) day following the last day of the Investment Period.   

 (b)  As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 



 

13 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the Payment in 

Lieu of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion 
as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   

[End of Article IV] 



 

14 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE V 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility or the 
cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve (12) 
months.  The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, 
if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment 
Period.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated 
pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any 
monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 



 

15 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into 
and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach 
or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or 
lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental 
violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save 
the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such 
claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with 
legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 
this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 
any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 



 

16 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 



 

17 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 



 

18 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



 

19 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

20 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



 

21 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
Project Hurricane   
Attn:       
     
     
 
With a copy to: 
 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com) 
One North Main Street 
2nd Floor 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601   
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 

 101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 
entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 



 

22 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates do not 
realize the economic benefit they are intended to receive from the County under this Fee Agreement, the 
County shall provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates additional Special Source Revenue Credits 
to the maximum extent permitted by law, in an amount sufficient to ensure the same net financial benefit 
is afforded to the Project as is to be provided hereunder. Further, the remaining provisions hereof shall be 
unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most 
closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the 
FILOT Act, to locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina 
laws eliminates or reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates and the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full 
consideration to reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South 
Carolina laws. 



 

23 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 
 



 

24 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 

this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Chairman and to be attested by 
the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 
   ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 
   By:      

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

Attest: 
 
 

By:_   
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 



 

25 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

 
 PROJECT HURRICANE 
 
        
 By:         
 Its:         

 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 

 



 

A-1 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
 

[To come.] 
 
 

 



 

B-1 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
 
             
      Name:       
      Its:       

 
 



 

C-1 
HSB 7355381 v.5  

EXHIBIT C 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 
 
 (2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
       
             
      Name:       
      Its:       



HSB 7361013 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-043 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF PROJECT HURRICANE; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council 
on November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County 
Council, Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a 
Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park 
created therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of 
Anderson County and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to 
Project Hurricane, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that: 
 
 1. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include 
the property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, 
pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County Council of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and 
Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 
2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
 
 



HSB 7361013 v.2  

 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading:    September 6, 2022 

2nd Reading:   September 20, 2022 

3rd Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: _______________ 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 



 A-1 
HSB 7361013 v.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

[To come.] 

 



HSB 7361013 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ___________, 2022, ________, 2022 and 
_________, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-044 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT FOR THE ENLARGEMENT OF 
THE JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK BY AND BETWEEN 
ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND GREENVILLE COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA; AND MATTERS RELATING THERETO. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and Title 4, Section 
1, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, “MCIP Act”), Anderson County (the 
“County”), acting by and through its County Council (“County Council”), is authorized to jointly develop 
multicounty parks with counties having contiguous borders with the County and, in the County’s discretion, 
include property within the boundaries of such multicounty parks. Under the authority provided in the MCIP 
Act, the County has created a multicounty park with Greenville County (“Park”); 

WHEREAS, MDTH Fuse, LLC (“MDTH”) has obtained certain land and is presently recruiting a 
project on such land (“Project Lifeboat”); 

WHEREAS, MDH F2 Greenville 301GR, LLC (“MDH”) is locating a project in Greenville County 
consisting of $5,000,000 in new investments in Greenville County (“Project MDH” and together with Project 
Lifeboat, the “Projects”); 

WHEREAS, in connection therewith, MDTH, MDH and the County desire to include certain property 
owned or to be owned by MDTH and MDH as more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the 
“Property”) in an existing multi-county industrial park created pursuant to an agreement (the “Agreement”) 
between the County and Greenville County in order to provide certain incentives to MDTH and MDH. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council of Anderson County, South 
Carolina, as follows: 

Section 1. The Agreement is hereby and shall be amended to include the Property in the Park. 

Section 2.  The Amendment to the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit B is hereby approved, 
and the Chair of County Council, County Administrator, and Clerk to County Council are hereby authorized, 
empower, and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Amendment to MDTH, MDH and Greenville 
County. 

Section 3. Pursuant to the MCIP Act and the terms of the Agreement, the expansion of the Park’s 
boundaries is complete on adoption of this Ordinance by County Council and the adoption of a similar ordinance 
by Greenville County authorizing the expansion of the Park with a description of the additional property to be 
included in the Park.   

Section 4. Revenues generated for the applicable multicounty industrial park from payments by 
MDTH and MDH of the amounts determined under the applicable fee agreement and to be retained by the 
County (“Net Park Fees”) under the agreement governing such multicounty industrial park shall be distributed 
within the County in accordance with this Section, as follows: 

(1) 15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-
042 and used as required or permitted thereby; 



2 

(2) 35% of Net Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, shall be
deposited to the Capital Renewal and Replacement Fund of the County; and 

(3) Remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the taxing entities in the County
which levy an ad valorem property tax in any of the areas comprising the County portion of the 
multicounty park in the same percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the millage rate 
(and proportion of operating and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for property 
tax purposes. 

Section 5.  The amendment of the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement as it relates to 
the Projects to a period of forty (40) years for each annual phase of the Projects placed in service is hereby 
authorized and approved. 

Section 6.  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any section, 
phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and 
provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the 
extent of such conflict only, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 
after its passage and approval. 

[END OF ORDINANCE, EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



3 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

BY: 
Chairman of County Council 

ATTEST: 

BY: 
County Administrator, Anderson County 
South Carolina 

BY: 
Clerk to County Council of Anderson County 
South Carolina 

First Reading:   September 6, 2022 
Second Reading:   September 20, 2022 
Public Hearing:  
Third Reading:  

Approved as to Form: 

County Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 

ANDERSON COUNTY PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in Williamston Township, Anderson County, South Carolina, 
known as TMS 216-00-08-016, and shown as Tract 1 on a plat for Estate of Mary Ellison Cothran by J. Don 
Lee Land Surveyors dated September 9, 1990 and being more fully described as follows: 

Beginning at an iron pin property corner (p.o.b.) On the eastern side of the i-85 frontage road, approximately 
426 feet south of Elrod Road, thence along with MSSW Properties, LLC s77°51’20”e a distance of 670.15 feet 
to an iron pin, thence turning and running along Coi Anderson Industrial, LLC along a traverse line following a 
branch which is the property line the following calls: s25°42’40”w a distance of 61.23 feet, s02°16’28”w a 
distance of 516.75 feet to an iron pin, thence turning and running along Coi Anderson Land LLC s80°13’54”w 
a distance of 881.55 feet to an iron pin on the eastern right-of-way of the i-85 frontage road, thence turning and 
running along the eastern right-of-way of the i-85 frontage road the following calls: n14°30’12”e a distance of 
328.69 to an iron pin, n16°14’40”e a distance of 395.06 feet, n22°24’40”e a distance of 178.00 feet to an iron 
pin, said iron pin being point of beginning and containing 12.60 acres (578,984 s.f.). 

Tax Map No.:  216-00-08-016 

GREENVILLE COUNTY PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

ALL that piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being in the County of Greenville, State of South 
Carolina, being known and designated as Tract 1, containing 32.34 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat of 
survey entitled "Recombination Survey for Augusta Grove Passco I Owner, LLC", dated October 25, 2019, 
prepared by Arrow North Surveying, LLC, and recorded in the ROD Office for Greenville County in Plat Book 
1357 at Page 78, reference to said plat being craved for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof. 



EXHIBIT B 

AMENDMENT TO MCBP AGREEMENT 

(See attached) 

4875-4757-6350 v.3 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AMENDMENT TO THE 2010 AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT  

) COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS 
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) PARK BETWEEN GREENVILLE COUNTY 

) AND ANDERSON COUNTY (MDTH FUSE, 
) LLC AND MDH F2 GREENVILLE 301GR, 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON  ) LLC) 

THIS AMENDMENT IS ENTERED INTO TO BE EFFECTIVE AS OF THE ____ DAY OF 
_______, 2022 BETWEEN GREENVILLE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA. 

By authority of Ordinances No. ___________ adopted by the County Council of Greenville 
County on _____________, 2022 and Ordinances No. ____________ enacted by the County 
Council of Anderson County on _____________, 2022, for value received, Greenville County and 
Anderson County hereby agree that the property described in Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached 
hereto is hereby added to and shall be deemed to be a part of the Agreement for the Development of 
Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) between Greenville County and Anderson 
County dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Park Agreement”) and such property described in Exhibit 
A hereto shall be added to Exhibit A of the Park Agreement and such property described in Exhibit 
B hereto shall be added to Exhibit B of the Park Agreement.  

All other terms and provisions of said Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

WITNESS our hands and seals as of the day first above written. 

GREENVILLE COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:    
Name:  
Greenville County, South Carolina 

ATTEST: 

By:    
Name:  
Clerk to Greenville County Council 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:    
Name: 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

ATTEST: 

By:    
Name:  
Clerk to Anderson County Council 



EXHIBIT A 

GREENVILLE COUNTY PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Property owned by MDH F2 Greenville 301GR, LLC: 

ALL that piece, parcel or tract of land situate, lying and being in the County of Greenville, State of South 
Carolina, being known and designated as Tract 1, containing 32.34 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat 
of survey entitled "Recombination Survey for Augusta Grove Passco I Owner, LLC", dated October 25, 
2019, prepared by Arrow North Surveying, LLC, and recorded in the ROD Office for Greenville County 
in Plat Book 1357 at Page 78, reference to said plat being craved for a more complete metes and bounds 
description thereof. 



EXHIBIT B 

ANDERSON COUNTY PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Property owned by MDTH Fuse, LLC:  

All that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in Williamston Township, Anderson County, South 
Carolina, known as TMS 216-00-08-016, and shown as Tract 1 on a plat for Estate of Mary Ellison Cothran 
by J. Don Lee Land Surveyors dated September 9, 1990 and being more fully described as follows: 

Beginning at an iron pin property corner (p.o.b.) On the eastern side of the i-85 frontage road, approximately 
426 feet south of Elrod Road, thence along with MSSW Properties, LLC s77°51’20”e a distance of 670.15 
feet to an iron pin, thence turning and running along Coi Anderson Industrial, LLC along a traverse line 
following a branch which is the property line the following calls: s25°42’40”w a distance of 61.23 feet, 
s02°16’28”w a distance of 516.75 feet to an iron pin, thence turning and running along Coi Anderson Land 
LLC s80°13’54”w a distance of 881.55 feet to an iron pin on the eastern right-of-way of the i-85 frontage 
road, thence turning and running along the eastern right-of-way of the i-85 frontage road the following 
calls: n14°30’12”e a distance of 328.69 to an iron pin, n16°14’40”e a distance of 395.06 feet, n22°24’40”e 
a distance of 178.00 feet to an iron pin, said iron pin being point of beginning and containing 12.60 acres 
(578,984 s.f.). 

Tax Map No.:  216-00-08-016 

4868-5630-1854 v.5 



ANDERSON COUNTY 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-045 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A REAL ESTATE LEASE WITH CLEMSON UNIVERSITY FOR 
SPACE IN THE ANDERSON COUNTY 1428 PEARMAN DAIRY ROAD FACILITY; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. (TITLE ONLY) 



Ordinance #2021-046 
Page 1 of 3 

3508 Dixon Rd, Anderson 

Ordinance #2022-046 

An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 97.48 acres from R-20 (Single-Family 
Residential District) to I-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land, 
identified as 3508 in the Centerville Station A Precinct shown in Deed Book 
15537 page 311. The parcel is further identified as TMS #95-00-03-006. 

Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 

Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 

Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to I-2 for +/- 97.48 acres of TMS #95-00-03-006 described 
above; and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on September 13, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from R-20 to I-2 for +/- 97.48 acres of TMS #95-00-03-006 described above; 
and, 

Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on October 4, 2022, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Ordinance #2021-046 
Page 2 of 3 

3508 Dixon Rd, Anderson 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone R-20 to I-2 for +/- 97.48 acres of 
TMS #95-00-03-006 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-046 
Page 3 of 3 

3508 Dixon Rd, Anderson 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2022-046 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      September 20, 2022 
 
2nd Reading:      October 4, 2022 
 
3rd Reading:  October 18, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:  October 4, 2022 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2   
Anderson County Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
September 13, 2022 

 
 
Applicant: Craig Shiflet 

Current owner:  Craig Shiflet 

Property location: 3508 Dixon Rd 

Precinct: Centerville Station A 

Council district: 5 

TMS#(s): 95-00-03-006 

Acreage: +/- 97.48 

Current zoning: R-20 (Single Family Residential District) 

 Located within Airport Height Safety Area 
Requested zoning: I-2 (Industrial Park District) 

 The Industrial Park district is established to provide a high 
level of design quality, site amenities, and open space for 
light industry, warehouse distribution, research and 
development operations, and similar industrial uses with 
compatible operations within a park atmosphere. All of the 
uses shall be of a type or intensity that do not produce 
odors, smoke, fumes, noise, glare, heat or vibrations which 
are incompatible with other uses in the park or its 
surrounding land uses outside the industrial park. The 
physical and operational requirements of the use, including 
type of structure used and volume of heavy truck traffic 
generated, shall not have an adverse impact upon 
surrounding land uses. Regulations are directed toward 
protecting neighboring land uses from any of the potential 
nuisances associated with industrial uses. 

 
Surrounding zoning: North: I-2 (Industrial Park District) 

South: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) 
East: PD (Planned Development)  
West: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) 
 

Evaluation: This request is to rezone from R-20 to I-2 for the purpose of 
selling the property and match the joining property’s zoning 
as the adjacent owner wishes to purchase the property to 
use as industrial. 

 
Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification 

actions have been completed, as follows: 
- August 24, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent to 

294 property owners within 2,000’ of the subject property. 



Page 2 of 2   
- August 24, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on 

subject property; 
- August 24, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing 

advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.  

Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the 
rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their 
recommendation at that time. 









OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

EX S

Proposed Building
1,500,000 SF

750 LF X 2000 LF

Proposed Building
128,250 SF

285 LF X 450 LF

Employee Parking

Loading
Docks

30' Sewer R/W

30
.0

' 15
0.

0'

20
0.

0'

150' Power R/W

200' Rail Road R/W

20
0'

 P
ow

er
 R

/W

200.0'

30.0'

25' Rear Setback

25
' S

id
e 

Se
tb

ac
k

50' Front Setback

50' Front Setback

25
' S

id
e 

Se
tb

ac
k

25' Side Setback

25
' S

id
e 

Se
tb

ac
k

25'
 Sid

e S
etb

ack

25' Side Setback

25' R/W

N57°
16'

44"
E  

   1
654

.71
'

S49°41'47"E     873.35'

S2
3°

26
'5

8"
W

   
  1

66
9.

73
'

S24°27'42"W     179.75'
N64° 23' 35"W

34.92'

N2
3°

 3
4'

 2
7"

E
16

1.
33

'

N65° 27' 49"W

172.14'

S2
0°

23
'1

4"
W

   
  1

62
.0

0'

N69°21'52"W     532.53'

N69° 14' 26"W
158.55'

N70° 41' 50"W
115.75'

N72° 53' 58"W
117.25'

N74° 00' 50"W
284.07'

N74° 42' 17"W
45.03'

N73° 47' 27"W
164.95'

N73°54'14"W     44.98'

N64°32'43"W     227.33'

N57°
15'

16"
E  

   1
957

.41
'

S49°40'29"E     1035.53'

Ex. Bldg

Proposed Spur Line

Dixon Rd

Ex. Pond

S89°24'43"W     330.78' S89°24'38"W     551.57'

N
13

°1
4'

27
"E

   
  1

26
8.

96
'

S64°02'48"E     932.47'

B.A.B

UA

AZI
OI

N
T

RO
THO F

FI
I

R
E

C
T

C
A TE

SURVEYING
ENGINEERING &

RIDGEWATER

No. 5816

A

RCA OL NITH
OU

S

Anderson County,
SOUTH CAROLINA

CHECKED:
DRAWN BY:

JOB NUMBER:
REV #

JT
TQ

XXXXX

RIDGEWATER
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

PO BOX 806
ANDERSON, SC 29622

(864) 226-0980
RIDGEWATERENG.COM

DATE COMMENT

--- 7-11-22 Road Name

--- --- ---

--- --- ---

--- --- ---

THIS DRAWING AND THE DESIGN SHOWN THEREON ARE THE
PROPERTY OF RIDGEWATER ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, LLC. THE
REPRODUCTION, COPYING OR USE OF THIS DRAWING WITHOUT
WRITTEN CONSENT IS PROHIBITED AND ANY INFRINGEMENT WILL
BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL ACTION.

--- --- ---

--- --- ---

SHEET

1 in =       ft.SCALE:

0200 200

200

100

G
RI

D
 N

O
RT

H

S.
C.

S.
P.

C.
 N

AD
 8

3 
(2

01
1)

N
AV

D
 8

8 
(C

O
N

U
S 

12
B)

Denotes Potential Waters of the State

SITE LEGEND

***CAUTION***

TOLL FREE 811
3 DAYS BEFORE DIGGING CALL

U

T
T

E
M

L
A

P
O

A

NO
TACOLYTI

I

E
CI

V
R

E
S

M

LLAC
TSYS

E

I

NO

L

E

T

PALMETTO UTILITY LOCATION SERVICE

A ONE CALL SYSTEM FOR COMMUNITY AND JOB SAFETY. C - 2

Site
Plan

To
 O

ld
 P

ea
rm

an

Da
iry

 R
d.

Pearman Road Associates LLC
TMS# 094-00-09-001

Dunn Road Associates LLC
TMS# 095-00-03-010

I2
41.06 AC. Gross

Craig Dennis Shiflet
TMS# 095-00-03-006

R-20
97.62 AC. Gross

David E. & Marni L. Cothran Jr.
TMS# 095-00-03-005

Sky Builders Inc.
TMS# 095-00-03-014

David E. & Marni L. Cothran Jr.
TMS# 095-00-03-004

Ly
nn

 W
ils

on

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

03
-0

01

Th
om

as
 G

. S
ta

ff
or

d

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

04
-0

01
Ti

na
 A

 C
la

rk
 L

ife
 E

ST

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

04
-0

03
W

an
da

 M
 H

ay
ne

s

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

04
-0

07
Da

in
 K

ar
l O

ve
r

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

05
-0

01
Ca

lli
e 

D 
Ti

lle
y

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

05
-0

02
Jo

hn
ny

 D
 &

 L
ex

ie
 L

 M
ill

er

TM
S#

 0
95

-1
1-

05
-0

03

Oscar Dr.













Ordinance #2021-047 
Page 1 of 3 

16.3 Acres Beaverdam Road 

 
Ordinance #2022-047 

 
An Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning 
Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.3 acres from R-20 (Single-Family 
Residential District) to C-3 (Commercial District) on a parcel of land, identified 
as 54.22 Acres on Beaverdam Road in the Williamston Mill Precinct shown in 
Deed Book 11140 page 228. The parcel is further identified as TMS #220-00-
08-007. 
 
Whereas, Anderson County, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision 
of the State of South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County 
Council (the “County Council”) has previously adopted Anderson County 
Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance (the “Ordinance”), 
which Ordinance contains the Anderson County Official Zoning Map (the “Map”); 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Ordinance contains provisions providing for the amendment of the 
Map; and, 
 
Whereas, County Council desires to amend the Map by adopting a zoning map 
amendment from R-20 to C-3 for +/- 16.3 acres of TMS #220-00-08-007 described 
above; and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Planning Commission has held a duly advertised 
Public Hearing on September 13, 2022, during which it reviewed the proposed 
rezoning from R-20 to C-3 for +/- 16.3 acres of TMS #220-00-08-007 described above; 
and, 
 
Whereas, the Anderson County Council has duly advertised and held a Public 
Hearing on October 4, 2022, regarding said amendment of the Anderson County 
Official Zoning Map:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
  



Ordinance #2021-047 
Page 2 of 3 

16.3 Acres Beaverdam Road 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council, in meeting duly 
assembled, that: 
 
 

1. The Anderson County Council hereby finds that this proposed rezoning is 
consistent with the Anderson County Comprehensive Plan and in accord 
with requirements of the South Carolina Code of Laws Title 6, Chapter 29, 
Article 5. 

 
2. The Anderson County Council hereby amends the Anderson County 

Official Zoning Map as previously adopted July 20, 1999, by Anderson 
County Ordinance #99-004 to rezone R-20 to C-3 for +/- 16.3 acres of 
TMS #220-00-08-007 described above.         

 
3. Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
determination shall not affect the remaining terms and provisions of this 
ordinance, all of which  are hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. All orders, resolutions, and enactments of Anderson County Council 

inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby 
repealed, revoked, and rescinded. 

 
5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and 

after third reading and enactment by Anderson County Council.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance #2021-047 
Page 3 of 3 

16.3 Acres Beaverdam Road 
 
 
ATTEST:  Ordinance 2022-046 
 
 
 
_____________________________         __________________________________   
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee D. Watts     
Clerk to Council 
              
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
     
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
1st Reading:      September 20, 2022 
 
2nd Reading:      October 4, 2022 
 
3rd Reading:  October 18, 2022 
 
Public Hearing:  October 4, 2022 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2   
Anderson County Planning Commission 

Staff Report 
September 13, 2022 

 
 
Applicant: Garnett Land Development 

Current owner:  Wayne B Elmore Family Trust & T Gary McAlister 

Property location: Beaverdam Rd 

Precinct: Williamston Mill 

Council district: 7 

TMS#(s): 220-00-08-007 

Acreage: +/- 16.3 of 54.22 acres total 

Current zoning: R-20 (Single Family Residential District) 
Requested zoning: C-3 (Commercial District) 

 The commercial district is established to provide for the 
development of commercial and light service land uses 
which are oriented to customers traveling by automobile. 
The land uses in this district are intended to be located in 
non-residentially zoned areas and along major 
thoroughfares. Establishments in this district provide goods 
and services for the traveling public. 

 
Surrounding zoning: North: R-MHP (Residential Manufacture Home Park District) 

South: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) & C-3 
(Commercial District) 
East: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) 
West: R-20 (Single-Family Residential District) 
 

Evaluation: This request is to rezone the front portion of the property from 
R-20 to C-3 for the purpose of creating a commercial park 
with 6 lots that can be used for various types of businesses. 
Businesses may include a restaurant and other general 
businesses. The interior lots will be used for warehouse and 
light manufacturing type businesses. 

 
Public outreach: Staff hereby certifies that the required public notification 

actions have been completed, as follows: 
- August 24, 2022: Rezoning notification postcards sent to  

274 property owners within 2,000’ of the subject property. 

- August 24, 2022: Rezoning notification signs posted on 
subject property; 

- August 24, 2022: Planning Commission public hearing 
advertisement published in the Independent-Mail.  



Page 2 of 2   
Staff recommendation: At the Planning commission Meeting during which the 

rezoning is scheduled to be discussed, staff will present their 
recommendation at that time. 









S50°31'29"E

867.61'

S
30°05'31"E

224.66'

S58°35'34"W 333.43'

N
31°32'28"W
121.01'

N
31°32'28"W
122.91'

N
31°35'24"W

82.10'

S 51°45'57" W
371.87'

N
 32°13'49" W

304.88'

66.00'

LOT-1
2.5 Ac.

LOT-2
2.0 Ac.

LOT-3
2.0 Ac.

LOT-4
2.0 Ac.

LOT-5
2.2 Ac.LOT-6

3.5 Ac.

LOT-7
37.8 Ac.

R100.00'

R66.00'

S 48°54'06" W 250.03'

N
 42°02'52" W

383.98'

N
 42°02'52" W

351.04'

N 49°07'22" E 250.05'

N 49°07'22" E

1236.95'

S43°44'19"E
324.18'

N46°15'41"E
302.00'

S43°44'19"E
286.09'

N72°17'19"E109.88'

S42°02'52"E

345.17'

N58°35'34"E 441.88'

N46°15'41"E 217.38'

S 46°15'41" W

147.97'

S 58°35'34" W
108.60' 57.5'

175.4'

55.3'

201.4'

128.9'

S46°15'41"W

137.27'

71.7' S46°15'41"W

67.86'

N46°15'41"E 239.51'

N58°34'59"E 364.22'N
30°00'57"W
73.26'

N
28°14'09"W

36.82'
N

26°13'14"W
91.21'

N
23°04'14"W
60.31'

N
18°00'39"W
94.18'

N03°30'12"W
79.35'

N
12°16'43"W
102.26'

N
08°26'44"W
74.12'

N62°26'30"E

1967.29'

S
O

U
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

DATE: MAY 11, 2022
SCALE: 1"=100'
JOB NUMBER: 22-030
REVISIONS:

CHECKED:  CCE
DRAWN BY: CCE

AN
D

ER
S

O
N

 C
O

U
N

TYB
EA

VE
R

D
AM

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 P
AR

K

P
R

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
P

LA
T

SHEET

MP

B
EA

VE
R

D
AM

 R
O

ADOAKLAND TER

ELLISON LAKE RD.

McALISTER ROAD

S
-0

4-
07

7

C-7-76A

C-6-34

S-04-144

C.E
. P

RO
PE

RT
Y S

OL
UT

ION
S, 

LLC
SU

R
VE

YI
N

G
, 
LA

N
D

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 &
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G

7
0
1
 W

ES
TV

IE
W

 A
VE

N
U

E
AN

D
ER

SO
N

, 
SO

U
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A 

2
9
6
2
5

PH
O

N
E:

 (
8
6
4
) 

2
2
1
-7

8
2
0

Em
ai

l:c
hr

is
ec

ep
s@

gm
ai

l.c
om

N/F
MACEDONIA BAPTIST

CHURCH OF WILLIAMSTON
TMS# 220-00-08-008

ZONED: R-20
CURRENT USE: CHURCH

N/F
PALMETTO MHP OF WILLIAMSTON, LLC

TMS# 220-00-08-015
ZONED: R-MHP

CURRENT USE: COMMERCIAL
MOBILE HOME PARK

N/F
CREAMER WILLIAM M. ET AL

TMS# 220-00-08-016
UNZONED

CURRENT USE: R-20
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

N/F
WILLIAMSTON SELF STORAGE

TMS# 220-03-01-019
ZONED: C-3

CURRENT USE: COMMERCIAL BUSINESS
/ SELF STORAGE AND OTHER

N/F
SONYA A. & KODY M. TENNIHILL

TMS# 220-03-01-010
ZONED: R-20

CURRENT USE: SINGLE FAMILY RES.
LOT IN STRINGER HIGHTS SUBDIVISION

N/F
SONYA A. & KODY M. TENNIHILL

TMS# 220-03-01-010
ZONED: C-3

CURRENT USE: UNDEVELOPED
NOTE: ZONING MAP SHOWS C-3

BUT TAX MAP SHOWS THIS
AS PART OF STRINGER

HEIGHTS SUBD

N/F
ROBERT & JUDY BAILEY
TMS# 220-01-01-009

ZONED: R-20
CURRENT USE: SINGLE FAMILY

RES. LOT IN
STRINGER HIGHTS

SUBDIVISION

N/F
MARLON L. & LYDIA E. SUMMEY

TMS# 220-01-01-010
ZONED: R-20

CURRENT USE: SINGLE FAMILY
RES. LOT IN

STRINGER HIGHTS
SUBDIVISION

N/F
DALE S. & RAMONA PITTS
TMS# 220-01-01-011

ZONED: R-20
CURRENT USE: SINGLE FAMILY

RES. LOT IN
STRINGER HIGHTS

SUBDIVISION

N/F
KEVIN & TONYA CURRENS
TMS# 220-01-01-012

ZONED: R-20
CURRENT USE: SINGLE FAMILY

RES. LOT IN
STRINGER HIGHTS

SUBDIVISION

STRINGER HEIGHTS
SUBDIVISION

NI
CK

IE
 D

RI
VE

SLAWSON ROAD

BEAVERDAM COMMERCE LANE

DEVELOPER

1.  THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE DURING FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING.
2.  THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT IS NOT FOR TRANSFER OF PROPERTY.  NO SURVEY FIELD WORK
PERFORMED.
3.  PARENT TMS#: 220-00-08-007
4.  PARENT PLAT BOOK: S-35, PAGE 7A
5.  PARENT DEED BOOK: 11140, PAGE 228
6.  THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN FEMA DESIGNATED SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA PER
FEMA FIRM MAP 45007C0145E
7.  EXISITNG PROPERTY LINES OBTAINED FROM COUNTY GIS DATA AND PLATS OF RECORD.
8.  LOT AREAS SHOWN INCLUDES SETBACKS.
9.  THERE WILL BE A 10' DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT ALONG EACH SIDE OF ALL SIDE
AND REAR LOT LINES AND 15' ALONG ALL EXTERIOR LOT LINES UNLESS ADJOINING PROPERTY
OWNERS HAVE ESTABLISHED EASEMENTS.
10.  EXISTING ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY INFORMATION, IF NOTED, WAS OBTAINED FROM COUNTY
GIS DATA AND/OR PLATS OF RECORD
11.  SETBACKS SHALL BE MEASURED FROM EDGE OF BUILDING TO PROPERTY LINE.
12.  A PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION WILL BE ESTABLISHED TO OWN AND MAINTAIN ANY
COMMON AREAS, DETENTION PONDS (IF REQUIRED), UTILITY EASEMENTS NOT LOCATED
OUTSIDE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAYS, ETC.
13.  ALL LOTS ZONED C-3 SHALL ACCESS THE NEW BEAVERDAM COMMERCIAL LANE ONLY (NO
DRIVEWAY TO BEAVERDAM ROAD.

GARNETT LAND DEVELOPMENT
C/O: MR. ROBERT ROMANOWSKI
116 CHIPPEWA LANE
WILLIAMSTON, SC 29697
PHONE:  (864) 634-4102
EMAIL: robert@siemag.us.com

ROADWAYS:

DESIGN NOTES:

1.  SHALL BE DEDICATED TO ANDERSON COUNTY
2.  RIGHT OF WAY WIDTHS:  66' (33' EACH SIDE OF CENTERLINE)
3.  MAIN DRIVE ASPHALT WIDTH:  24 FT.
4.  CURB & GUTTER:  18" ROLLED CURB & GUTTER.
5.  PAVEMENT SECTION DESIGN SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND
ANDERSON COUNTY ROAD STANDARDS

SEWER SERVICE:
1. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE FOR EACH LOT WILL BE PROVIDED BY ONSITE SEPTIC
SYSTEM

WATER SERVICE:
1. WATER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY HAMMOND/BIG CREEK WATER DISTRICT.

ZONING DATA

BUILDING SETBACKS

THIS ENTIRE 54+/- ACRE PARCEL IS CURRENTLY
ZONED R-20

A PORTION OF THIS PARCEL (LOT #1 THRU LOT# 6)
SHALL BE REZONED TO COMMERCIAL C-3.
TRACT/LOT# 7 SHALL REMAIN AS R-20.

(FOR C-3 ZONED AREA)
FRONT YARD = 50 L.F. (ALONG BEAVERDAM ROAD FRONTAGE)
FRONT YARD = 30 L.F. (ALONG NEW COMMERCIAL LANE)
SIDE YARD = 25 L.F.
REAR YARD = 25 L.F.

GENERAL NOTES:

TAX MAP NUMBER
TAX MAP NO. 220-00-08-007

1.98 ACRESROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA:

6NO. OF PROPOSED LOTS TO BE ZONED C-3:
54.0 ACRESTOTAL TRACT AREA:

PROJECT INFORMATIONDEVELOPER

1 5/14/22 REV. LOT LAYOUT CCE

THIS TRACT
SHALL REMAIN

AS R-20 ZONING
AREA=37.1 AC +/-

THIS TRACT
SHALL BE REZONED

TO C-3
AREA=16.3 AC

2 5/27/22 REV. LOT LAYOUT CCE

LOCATION MAP

SITE

N.T.S.

HO
GG

 R
D.

BEAVERDAM
 ROAD

MCALIS
TER RD.

OAKLAND TE
R.

ELLI
SON

LAKE RD

US
 H

W
Y 

29

CH
IP

PE
W

A 
LN

N
IC

KI
E 

D
R.

SL
AW

SO
N

 D
R

PUBLIC ROAD

3 7/6/22 REV. ROAD ALIGNAMENT AND LOTS CCE

16.26 acACREAGE TO BE ZONED C-3:
37.11 acACREAGE TO REMAIN ZONED C-3:

4 7/20/22 CCEADDED ACCESS EASEMENT LOT 2 AND 3

5 7/28/22 CCEREV. LOT AND ROAD LAYOUT

942 lfROAD LENGTH:

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
892

AutoCAD SHX Text
894

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
926

AutoCAD SHX Text
928

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
922

AutoCAD SHX Text
924

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
894

AutoCAD SHX Text
892

AutoCAD SHX Text
884

AutoCAD SHX Text
894

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
890

AutoCAD SHX Text
872

AutoCAD SHX Text
870

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
886

AutoCAD SHX Text
884

AutoCAD SHX Text
882

AutoCAD SHX Text
880

AutoCAD SHX Text
890

AutoCAD SHX Text
892

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
894

AutoCAD SHX Text
892

AutoCAD SHX Text
890

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
910

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
900

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
884

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
886

AutoCAD SHX Text
880

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
896

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
902

AutoCAD SHX Text
898

AutoCAD SHX Text
894

AutoCAD SHX Text
892

AutoCAD SHX Text
890

AutoCAD SHX Text
888

AutoCAD SHX Text
886

AutoCAD SHX Text
904

AutoCAD SHX Text
916

AutoCAD SHX Text
918

AutoCAD SHX Text
920

AutoCAD SHX Text
914

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
912

AutoCAD SHX Text
906

AutoCAD SHX Text
908

AutoCAD SHX Text
     COPYRIGHT 2022,  C.E. PROPERTY SOLUTIONS, LLC.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, ALTERED OR REUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ENGINEER/SURVEYOR.  ENGINEERING DRAWINGS ARE PROTECTED BY THE U.S. GOVERNMENT COPYRIGHT LEGISLATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED, ALTERED OR REUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE ENGINEER/SURVEYOR.  ENGINEERING DRAWINGS ARE PROTECTED BY THE U.S. GOVERNMENT COPYRIGHT LEGISLATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLUTIONS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.E. PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 3401

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
300'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 100'













 
RESOLUTION R2022-053 

 
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING CONSENT TO THE INSTALLATION OF SPEED HUMPS 
ON CLARENDON DRIVE, (C-01-0055); AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, Clarendon Drive, C-01-0055 (the “Road”) is currently a paved Anderson County 
(the “County”) public road, located within HAMPTON DOWNS SUBDIVISION; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 40-93 (formerly Section 59-41) of the Anderson County 
Code of Ordinances, the requisite number of landowners using the Road to access their property 
petition Anderson County for the installation of one (1) additional speed hump along the Road; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 40-93 (formerly Section 59-41) of the Anderson County 
Code of Ordinances, the Anderson County Roads and Bridges Department conducted a feasibility 
study and has determined the Road qualifies for the construction of one (1) additional speed hump 
along the Road at the locations identified on the attached Exhibit A at an estimated cost of One 
Thousand dollars ($1,000.00); and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political 
subdivision of the State of South Carolina, acting by and through its County Council, desires to express 
its intent to authorize the construction of the speed humps on the Road provided the property owners 
residing on said Road pay fifty percent (50%) of the estimated construction cost for a total property 
owner match of Five Hundred dollars ($500.00) for one additional speed hump.; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council previously approved Resolution R-2022-043 on 
August 16, 2022, which provided for four (4) speed humps along Clarendon Drive. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by Anderson County Council in meeting duly assembled that: 
 

1. Pursuant to Section 40-93 (formerly Section 59-41) of the Anderson County Code of 
Ordinances, Anderson County, acting by and through its County Council, hereby states 
that Anderson County consents to the installation of one (1) additional speed humps 
on the Road at the locations set forth on Exhibit  A provided that the property owners 
residing on said Road pay fifty percent (50%) of the estimated construction cost for a 
total property owner match of  Five Hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 
2. Construction shall not begin until the property owners’ match is received by the 

County.  
 
3. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 

only, repealed and rescinded. 
 

4. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall 
not affect the remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 



5. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 
 
 
 RESOLVED this 20th day of September 2022, in a meeting duly assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council    
 
 
 
       
Renee D. Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 
 



Additional Speed Hump =

CELY RD

C-1-52

CENTURY OAKS DR

C-1-52A
BERKLEY DR

C-1-54

CLARENDON DR

C-1-55

CO
LL

ET
ON

 C
T

C-
1-6

5

RICHLAND CTC-1-55A

CELY RD

C-1-52

Clarendon Drive Approx. Locations of Speed Humps adjustments may be made during installation

Speed Hump  =

Exhibit A



RESOLUTION 2022-055 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE JOINDER OF CENTURY HILLS, INC. AS A 
SPONSOR AFFILIATE TO THE FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDIT AGREEMENT BETWEEN BLUEBIRD SOLAR, LLC AND ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA DATED MAY 21, 2019; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, Bluebird Solar, LLC entered into a Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement and Special 
Source Credit Agreement (the “FILOT”) dated May 21, 2019; 
 
  WHEREAS, Bluebird Solar, LLC has requested that Century Hills, Inc join the FILOT 
pursuant to the attached Joinder Agreement (Exhibit A) and pursuant to the terms of the FILOT. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by Anderson County Council in meeting 
duly assembled that: 
 
 1. That Anderson County Council does hereby consent to the attached Joinder  
  Agreement and approves the execution thereof. 
 

2. All orders and resolutions in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict 
only, repealed and rescinded. 

 
3. Should any part or portion of this resolution be deemed unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such finding shall 
not affect the remainder hereof, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 
4. This resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately upon enactment. 

 
 
 RESOLVED this 20th day of September 2022, in a meeting duly assembled. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council    
 
 
 
       
Renee D. Watts 
Clerk to County Council 
 
 



 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 
 



Exhibit A 
 
 

JOINDER AGREEMENT 
 
 

Reference is hereby made to (i) that certain Fee in Agreement effective May 21, 2019 (“Fee 
Agreement”), between Anderson County, South Carolina (“County”) and Bluebird Solar LLC 
(“Company”). 

 
1. Joinder to Fee Agreement. 

 
Century Hills, Inc., a South Carolina corporation (“Century Hills”) hereby (a) joins as a party 

to, and agrees to be bound by and subject to all of the terms and conditions of, the Fee Agreement 
except as set forth herein; and (b) acknowledges and agrees that (i) in accordance with the Fee 
Agreement, Century Hills has been designated as a Sponsor Affiliate by the Company for purposes 
of the Project and such designation has been consented to by the County in accordance with the 
Act (as defined in the Fee Agreement); (ii) Century Hills qualifies or will qualify as a Sponsor 
Affiliate under the Fee Agreement and Section 12-44-30(20) and Section 12-44-130 of the Act; 
and (iii) Century Hills shall have all of the rights and obligation of a Sponsor Affiliate as set forth 
in the Fee Agreement, except as set forth herein.  
 
 The Company (a) agrees to be responsible for all repayments that arise pursuant to the Fee 
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed to through a separate agreement in writing between the 
Company and Century Hills (including any lease agreements that have been or will be assigned to 
the Company in connection with the Project); and (b) agrees to indemnify Century Hills against all 
claims brought against it arising from the Fee Agreement, provided that any such claim is not a 
result of Century Hills’ own negligence, bad faith, fraud, deceit, or willful misconduct. 
 

To the extent of any conflict between the Fee Agreement and this Joinder Agreement, the terms 
and provisions of this Joinder Agreement shall govern and control as to matters pertaining to the 
undersigned, and any conflicting terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to the extent necessary not to conflict with the provisions hereof.  
 

2. Capitalized Terms. 
 
All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Joinder Agreement shall have the meanings set 
forth in the Fee Agreement. 

 
3. Governing Law. 

This Joinder Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of South Carolina, without regard to principles of choice of law. 

 
4. Notice. 

Notices under Article V, Section 5.1 of the Fee Agreement for Century Hills shall be sent to: 
 

Century Hills, Inc., Attn: Annette M. Buchanan, 1790 Boxwood Manor, Pendleton, SC 29670 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Joinder Agreement to be effective as 
of the effective date of the Fee Agreement.  

 Century Hills, Inc.   
 
By:      ______ 
Name: Annette M. Buchanan 
Its:  President 
 
Date:     _________________________________ 
Address:  1790 Boxwood Manor, 

    Pendleton, SC 29670 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company consents to the addition of the above-named entity 

becoming a Sponsor Affiliate under the Fee Agreement effective as of the effective date of the Fee 
Agreement. 
  

Bluebird Solar LLC 
By: NRE Lessor LLC, its Sole Member 
By: NRE Managing Member LLC, its Manager 

 
 
By:        
Name: Jesse Montgomery 
Its: Manager 
 
Date:     _______ 
 
Address:  227-B Southside Drive 
     Charlotte, NC 28217 






















































	Agenda CCM September 20, 2022
	2a Resolution R2022-052 JROTC
	2b Resolution Starr-Iva All Stars
	3 Minutes 9062022
	5a Ordinance 2022-037 Project Little Brother 
	6a Ordinance 2022-036 Rezone Hwy 187
	6b Ordinance 2022-039 Project Care
	6c Ordinance 2022-040 Transfer Town of Pelzer
	6d Ordinance 2022-041 RW Big Water Marina
	6e Ordinance 2022-042 Project Hurricane
	6f Ordiance 2022-043 MCIP Project Hurricane
	6g Ordinance 2022-044 MCIP Project Lifeboat
	7a Ordinance 2022-045 Lease Clemson University TITLE ONLY
	7b Ordinance 2022-046 Rezoning Dixon Raod
	7c Odinance 2022-047 Rezoning Beaverdam Road
	8a Resolution 2022-053 Speed Hump Clarendon Dr
	8b Resolution 2022-055 Project Azul
	RFQ #23-004
	11a Appointment Museum Advisory Board
	12a Request Foothills Community Health
	12b Request Homeland Park Community Watch
	12c Request JBECO
	12d Request Celebrate Anderson
	12e Request Angel's Elite Model
	13a Special Projects
	13b Paving



